London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
Notice of Meeting

THE EXECUTIVE

Tuesday, 24 May 2005 - 7:00 pm
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham

Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass (Chair); Councillor T G W Wade (Deputy
Chair); Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor H J Collins,
Councillor C Geddes, Councillor S Kallar, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E
McKenzie and Councillor L A Smith (subject to confirmation at Annual Assembly)

Declaration of Members Interest: In accordance with Article 1, Paragraph 12 of the
Constitution, Members are asked to declare any direct/indirect financial or other
interest they may have in any matter which is to be considered at this meeting

13.05.05 R. A. Whiteman
Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Alan Dawson
Tel. 020 8227 2348
Fax: 020 8227 2171
Minicom: 020 8227 2685
E-mail: alan.dawson@Ibbd.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 10
May 2005 (circulated separately)

Business Iltems
Public Items 3 to 4 and Private Items 12 to 15 are business items. The Chair will
move that these be agreed without discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a

specific point.

Any discussion of a Private Business Item will take place after the exclusion of the
public and press.

3. Attendance at the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) Conference 2005 (Pages 1 - 2)

The London Borough of

Barking & Dagenham




4.

Future Development of Information Management and Technology (Pages
3-4)

Discussion Items

5.

Dagenham Heathway Regeneration Strategy and Public Realm
Improvement Programme (Pages 5 - 37)

Barking and Havering Local Improvement Finance Trust Strategic
Services Development Plan (Pages 39 - 70)

Performance Monitoring 2004/05 (Pages 71 - 74)

The Performance Monitoring graphs will be circulated to Members under
separate cover and will also be made available on the Internet, in the Members’
Rooms and at public libraries.

Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent

To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to
exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to
the nature of the business to be transacted.

Private Business

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive
information is to be discussed. The list below shows why items are in the
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972).

Discussion Items

10.

11.

Redevelopment of the Eastern End of Thames View Estate (Pages 75 - 87)
Concerns the proposed terms for the acquisition of property (paragraph 8)

Corporate Strategy Department Re-Structure (to follow, restricted
circulation)

Concerns a labour relation smatter (paragraph 1)

Business Items

12.

Urgent Action - Disposal of Land at Undervalue: D'Arcy Gardens
Allotment Site (Pages 89 - 91)

Concerns the terms of a land disposal (paragraph 9)

The London Borough of

Barking & Dagenham




13.

14.

15.

16.

Inspection of the Children's Services Adoption Service: Appointment of
External Project Manager (Pages 93 - 95)

Concerns a contractual matter (paragraphs 7 and 8)

Community Music Service Redevelopment: Costs of Relocation of
Barking Boxing Club (to follow)

Concerns the business affairs of a third party (paragraph 7)
Employment Tribunal (to follow, restricted circulation)
Concerns a staffing matter (paragraph 1)

Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are
urgent

The London Borough of

Barking & Dagenham




This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 3

THE EXECUTIVE

24 MAY 2005

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

ATTENDANCE AT THE CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF FOR DECISION
PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY (CIPFA)
CONFERENCE 2005

This report seeks approval for attendance at the CIPFA 2005 Conference in accordance
with the Council’s Conferences, Visits and Hospitality Rules as the total cost of attending
the conference will exceed the £1,000 threshold.

Summary

The Executive is asked to agree representation from the Council by 2 persons to the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) annual conference which is
to be held over a 3 day period.

Recommendation

The Executive is asked to approve attendance of the Chief Executive and the Director of
Finance at the CIPFA annual conference 2005, in Manchester from 14-17 June 2005, at a
cost of £595 per delegate plus accommodation and travel to be met from the existing
departmental training budget.

Reason
Attendance at the CIPFA conference is an opportunity to learn about current issues

affecting public sector organisations with a particular emphasis on strategic financial
aspects

Contact:
Julie Parker Director of Finance Tel: 020 8227 2252

Minicom: 0208 227 2685

E-mail: julie.parker@lbbd.gov.uk

1. Background

1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is the
professional body for accountants in the public sector. CIPFA holds an annual
conference and exhibition in different locations every year. This year it is being held
in Manchester from 14-17 June 2005.

1.2 The annual conference and exhibition is regarded as a valuable conference
promoting the Institute’s purpose to maximise the contributions that the CIPFA
accountants at the senior level can make to the public sector.

1.3 Attendance at the CIPFA conference is an opportunity to learn about current issues
affecting public sector organisations with a particular emphasis on strategic financial

Page 1



2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

aspects. Speakers are drawn from opinion formers and leaders in their fields. It is
a good opportunity to speak to suppliers, consultants, gain exposure to new
products and concepts via the exhibition area. It is also an ideal opportunity to
network with senior finance staff from across the country. The majority of Directors
of Finance attend this conference.

Detalil

This years’ conference is entitled “Raising the Bar ... Building Innovative and
Enterprising Public Services”. It will cover topics that include:

Can we deliver significant improvement in public sector efficiency?
Setting the standard for Public Service Governance.

Scanning economic and political horizons.

Regenerating cities — contrasting strategies.

Serving the public interest.

The conference is one of the public services’ largest events attracting 1,000
delegates from a broad span of the public, private and voluntary sectors, including a
growing number of international guests.

Cost
In previous years the Director of Finance has attended alone but this year the Chief
Executive, who is a CIPFA member and currently a co-opted member of the CIPFA

Council, wishes to attend, so taking the cost over £1,000.

The cost per delegate is £595 (£560 each for two or more), plus hotel and travel
costs, which is estimated for two to be:-

Conference 1120
Accommodation 760
Travel _200

£2,080

These costs will be funded from the existing departmental training budgets.

Background Papers
Conference Brochure

Page 2



AGENDA ITEM 4

THE EXECUTIVE

24 MAY 2005

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF INFORMATION FOR DECISION
MANAGEMENT AND TECHNOLOGY

This report details the way forward to review the service provision and resulting structure of
the IM&T department. IM&T will undertake a Best Value Review and with the agreement
of the Executive, the actions in the review will be implemented and thus supersede the
report on restructure from October 2003.

Summary

This report outlines the background to the current establishment of the IM&T Division, and
identifies the way forward for a Best Value Review (BVR) of IM&T which will focus on the
services provided within the Council for Information and Communication Technology (ICT)
including IT infrastructure, web development, system management and development, IT
support, guidance and advice, procurement, system integration and implementation and
project management.

Recommendation

The Executive is recommended to agree that the BVR will be used to determine the future
of IM&T service provision throughout the Council and an appropriate management
structure.

Reason

The review of IM&T is to enable an analysis of the current ICT provision, focusing on future

business and customer needs to ensure the Council delivers services to customers
effectively and efficiently.

Contact Officer

Sarah Bryant Head of Information Tel: 020 8227 2015
Management & Fax: 020 8227 2060
Technology Minicom: 020 8227 2685

Email sarah.bryant@Ibbd.gov.uk

1. Background

1.1  Areport to the Executive on 28 October 2003 (Minute 179 refers) detailed an
outline review of the way IM&T delivers services throughout the Council. The report
recognised that the Council faces significant changes which have and will continue
to impact on the way in which ICT is delivered and proposed that the IM&T Service
needed to be re-organised, resourced and structured to:

1 Focus on policy and performance at the Centre of the department;
2 Streamline technical support;
3 Deliver e-government programme across the Council;

Page 3



1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

The review was carried out along with an independent consultant from the Society
of IT Management (SOCITM) who was brought in to assist.

To date, work has progressed to deliver the key recommendations of the review to
improve the delivery of IM&T services to customers and a restructure has started to
emerge with the centralisation of IM&T Services. However, over the past 18
months priorities for the Council for IM&T have changed.

With the Head of IM&T being in post since August 2004 the key priorities were
identified as:

1 Establish e-government unit to deliver the e-government agenda across the
Council indicating BVPI 157 — to provide services electronically.

2 Establish an ICT Strategy.

3 Improve services to customers by re-aligning IM&T Services to the Council’s
business needs.

4 Integrate desktop support to provide a cohesive, consistent corporate service

to customers.

Although a full restructure has not taken place, IM&T has undergone and continues
to undergo, a transformation of the way in which it delivers services to customers
with the main focus on continuous improvement, customer satisfaction and
delivering an excellent service to customer needs.

IM&T have now been selected (2005/06) to undergo a service review under Best
Value. This will ensure that IM&T Services are compared with external providers,
challenging what is provided and the way of doing so, focussing on quality, value for
money and customer satisfaction. The scope of the review is currently being
determined.

This review will determine the future shape of the service provision along with
actions to improve service delivery across the Council. Continuous improvements
will continue to be made throughout the department focussing on delivering the key
objectives (balanced scorecard) and transforming our services to customers

In view of the BVR and the progress made to date it is proposed that the restructure
detailed in the report to the executive some 19 months ago is not implemented as
the BVR will determine the appropriate structure and action plan to be implemented.

Consultation:
Corporate Management Team

Policy and Performance Unit
Director of Finance

Background Papers
Report to The Executive 28 October 2003 (Minute 179)
Balanced Score Card

Page 4



AGENDA ITEM 5

THE EXECUTIVE

24 MAY 2005

REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

DAGENHAM HEATHWAY REGENERATION STRATEGY | FOR DECISION
AND PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

This is a strategic issue concerning regeneration in Dagenham which is within the remit
of the Executive.

Summary

This report seeks the Executive’s approval for the Dagenham Heathway Regeneration
Strategy in order to strengthen and improve the retail offer for local residents. The
Strategy identifies a range of interventions and improvements across a broad range of
areas, including planning policy, public transport investment, environmental / public
realm improvements and new civic facilities. The Strategy will help to realise the full
potential of the centre as a focus for retail, services and community facility provision for
local residents and businesses and also identify development opportunities and guide
future investment decisions.

Wards Affected - River, Village, Heath, Alibon, Parsloes, and Goresbrook
Recommendation
The Executive is recommended to agree:

1. The Dagenham Heathway Regeneration Strategy for the purpose of consultation
within the Local Development Framework (LDF); and

2. The design of the first phase of the Public Realm Improvement Programme for
the Heathway (Parloes Avenue — Dagenham Avenue).

Reason
To assist the Council in achieving its Community Priorities of “Regenerating the Local

Economy”, and "Raising Pride in the Borough”, to assist in the good planning of the area
and to promote the social, economic and environmental well- being of the area.

Contact
Kevin Munnelly Regeneration Tel: 020 8227 3904
Implementation Fax: 020 8227 5326
Minicom: 020 8227 3034
E-mail:

kevin.munnelly@Ibbd.gov.uk

Page 5



11

1.2

2.1

2.2

Background

Dagenham Heathway is an important district shopping centre within the Borough.
A Regeneration Strategy is required to strengthen and improve the retail offer for
local residents. This will identify a range of interventions and improvements across
a broad range of areas, including planning policy, public transport investment,
environmental / public realm improvements and new civic facilities. The strategy
will help to realise the full potential of the centre as a focus for retail, services and
community facility provision for local residents and businesses and also identify
development opportunities and guide future investment decisions.

In preparing the Regeneration Strategy the consultant team carried out extensive
research into the needs of the local residents and businesses and identified the
wider economic and social challenges and threats facing the centre. A selection of
the results of this analysis are contained in the final report, extracts of which are
attached as Appendix 1. A full version of the Regeneration Strategy and Public
Realm Improvement Programme is available in the Members Rooms at both the
Town Hall and the Civic Centre.

Regeneration Vision and Priority Areas

The challenges that face the Heathway are self evident in the quality of the retalil
offer currently available to residents. The comparison between the Mall, with its
good, if traditional appearance and demand for premises from multiples, and the
high street with its inferior quality of unit and environment, is striking. The lack of
modern retail units and development opportunities, allied to the quality of the
public realm, together with changes in retail habits i.e. greater use of outer or edge
of town shopping, have caused the Heathway to slip down the retail hierarchy and
lose out to more vibrant centres such as Barking and Romford. The private sector
alone is unlikely to significantly invest in the area without assistance from the
public sector. It is therefore essential that the Council lead on developing policy
and specific interventions which will stimulate development activity and ensure the
long term sustainability of the Heathway as a valuable local town centre. The
Regeneration Strategy proposes the following vision for the Heathway:

To maximise the potential of Dagenham Heathway by transforming
the Centre into a sustainable, attractive, vibrant and safe town centre
where people want to, and are able to live, work and access high
guality public transport, shopping and leisure facilities.

The content of the Regeneration Strategy and the individual improvements and
actions have therefore been developed to deliver this vision. In addition to the
analysis of the background economic reports, the proposed improvement actions
have also been informed by a comprehensive programme of public consultation
which has included a household survey on shopping expenditure patterns, a
business survey and a community street audit carried out as part of Urban Design
week. For the purposes of this report the proposed improvements have been set
out on a thematic basis as identified in the analysis.

Page 6



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Retail

The Strategy acknowledges the strength of the Heathway lies in the comparison
goods offer, but recognised that the lack of a large food store is undermining the
centres vitality and long term viability. The lack of investment over the past 20
years in the fabric of the current retail units and their irregular shape and size has
not made them attractive to major retailers, who generally are looking for single
units of 500 sq m. The Strategy identifies the need to increase the amount of time
people stay in the centre, therefore adding to the vibrancy of the centre. The
Regeneration Strategy proposes the following interventions to address the retalil
challenge:

e Anurgent need to provide a food supermarket in the centre.

¢ |dentification of opportunity sites that can be developed to provide high quality
mixed use retail and housing schemes.

e The provision of larger modern retail units to meet the demands of multiples
through the identification of development sites that can be promoted via the
LDF process.

e A programme of environmental/public realm improvements for the Heathway,
with the shopping core established as the first phase.

Housing

The Strategy recommends that, in line with Government policy, the Council should
promote the development of high density housing at the Heathway through the
development and re-use of previously developed land. The success of the
Housing development at Reede and Blackbourne Roads have illustrated that there
is a strong demand for new housing in this area. However, because of the shallow
depths of many of the units on the Heathway there is limited scope to realise
significant housing redevelopment without considerable site consolidation. This
consolidation requirement has been reflected in the identification of housing
development sites, many of which are backland sites.

Potential Development Sites

To support the delivery of the wider regeneration strategy the consultants carried
out an extensive analysis of potential development sites in the Heathway core.
This is attached as A26 in Appendix 1. This includes an analysis of each
opportunity site, setting out individual development objectives, information on the
site such as size, the current use and ownership. It then proposes a development
mix for each site informed by the overarching development objectives of the
Regeneration Strategy. The provisional timetable indicating a programme of
development for the sites including phasing is set out in A37 in Appendix 1.

The indicative development phasing sees a number of sites A, A1 & B, being the
first to be promoted before 2009 to meet the identified need of a new supermarket
and larger retail units. The analysis by the consultant teams sees the remaining
opportunity sites being developed out between 2013 and 2019 for a variety of
mixed uses. The phasing document does make reference to the provision of the
new Dagenham Library and Customer Care facility on Site F being commenced by
2007/8.

Page 7



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Public Realm Improvements

One of the key weaknesses of the Centre is the variable quality of the public realm
all the way along the Heathway, with particular emphasis placed on the retail core.
The Regeneration Strategy proposes a radical overhaul of the public realm and
proposes an ambitious environmental improvement programme. A key part of the
public realm improvement programme is therefore the adoption of a greening
strategy for the Heathway. The basic concept promotes the idea of the Heathway
as a continuous green corridor, using the generous street width and open greens
as a key attribute. This would result in a programme of extensive tree planting of a
varied selection of trees which would dramatically alter the appearance of the
area. It is proposed that London Planes are planted as part of the 1% phase of the
improvement programme in the retail core. The further stages of planting along
the Heathway to Chequers Corner, will include species such as White Willow, Ash
and Hybrid Poplar, which will allow for a mixture of colour and texture, which will
change with the seasons and add colour to the street. Further details of the
greening strategy is contained in B23 and B25 in Appendix 1.

The improvement programme also proposes a major overhaul of the hard
landscape of the Heathway including pavements, kerbs, parking areas, street
furniture including lamp columns, bins, seats, and the equipment for statutory
undertakers such as public telephones and bus stops. In recognition that the area
from the Heathway to Chequers Lane is one of the Mayor’s designated 100 public
spaces, the overall Regeneration Strategy proposes a major investment in
upgrading the quality of the Heathway, which will be reflected in the design and
selection of materials. Work has begun with the Council’'s Head of Arts Service to
develop a range of complimentary Artscape projects, based on the experience of
the successful A13 and Barking Town Centre Arts Schemes.

The general design principles underpinning the improvement programme seek to
minimise the level of street clutter, providing one style of design and a material
palette that will applied all along the Heathway. These include the selection of
granite setts in the carriageway to delineate parking areas, granite flags on the
pavements, and cast stone benches. It is a key element of the design of the hard
landscaping scheme that it will be integrated with the tree planting scheme. The
overall design will seek to integrate car parking within a remodelled carriageway
and provide a dedicated cycle route. Sectional details of the overall design,
including junction treatments are contained in B30 and B34 in Appendix 1.

In responding to the priority regeneration objective, to improve the retail core
section of the Heathway, the Regeneration Strategy proposes that the Council
should promote as the first phase of the improvement plan the section between
Parloes Avenue and Dagenham Avenue.

With funding secured from the Thames Gateway London Partnership officers have
been able to develop further these concept design drawings for the first phase of
the improvement programme. This has included developing the improvement
programme up to a pre-contract stage including cost estimates, which has
estimated the cost implementing the 1% Phase as £2,254,597 (see Appendix 2).

It is acknowledged that the overall improvement programme for the whole of the
Heathway will have to be phased over a number of years, the phasing of which will

Page 8



be subject to funding being available to undertake the work. However, given the
profile of the Heathway as one of the Mayor’s 100 public spaces it is considered
that this will release significant funds from Transport for London via the Local
Implementation Plan and the Thames Gateway London Partnership transport
funding. It is proposed that phase 1 of the improvement programme is included as
a specific bid in the 2005-10 Borough Local Improvement Plan. It is also proposed
that additional funding bids be made in 2005/6 to the London Thames Gateway
Development Corporation and the ODPM Sustainable Communities Fund to match
fund the LIP bid. Itis also anticipated that officers will make a bid for funding in
2006/7 under the Council Capital Programme.

Improvement Plan

2.13  The regeneration strategy also proposes a further range of improvements which
relate to managerial issues in the Centre. The Strategy recommends that there is
a need to facilitate and foster an improved retail environment through partnership
with existing retailers and by undertaking environmental improvements and
promoting greater town centre management of the centre to deal with issues such
as car parking, littering and anti-social behaviour. The full Town Centre
improvement plan is attached as A42 — A49 in Appendix 1

3. Financial Implications

3.1 The adoption of the Regeneration Strategy for consultation as part of the Local
Development process does not have any direct implications for the Council. The
approval of the design for the first phase of the Heathway Public Realm
Improvement Plan will result in the further development of the project to a funding
stage, the implications of which for the Council will not be know until the outcome
of the respective funding bids. There are currently no funds allocated for this
improvement programme. Any public realm improvement programme will be
subject to a full Capital Programme Monitoring Office (CPMO) appraisal.

4. Consultation

4.1 The GLA's Architecture and Urbanism Unit have been fully involved in the
development of the improvement programme and they have endorsed the broad
approach. Internally, the improvement programme has been developed with
inputs from Housing, Parks and Leisure, Highways, and the Urban Design Group
who have been consulted. This report was also considered at the Council’s
Regeneration Board meeting on 25 April 2005.

Background Papers
e Dagenham Heathway Regeneration Strategy March 2005
e Dagenham Heathway Public Realm Improvement Programme

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



L1 d

weay d1jangd
ABaye.S UolyeIauaBaY
AVMHLY3IH WVHNIOVQ {0 2imins ay1iof bujuued

1O

aue w3 ya2unyd

10}800-00 UM AJBIGIT WEUUBBE( MaU © 10§ APN}S A}IGISEaY

yoop ubisaq ueqin ayj jo 1ed se g Jequieideg /|
uo Aep uolje}Nsuod sy} Bulinp pesies senss|

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



ueak siy3 Ayjeley suo o} ps| uado }48| sele9
1sepad

uswuoJlAue Jo abewl Jood jussalid pue seale
'S10}09]|02 8SN}aJ 0} SS90k JusAaid sisliieq u ¥ ! § ! } P!

Burdwnp se joe ‘aindasul aJe AemyjeaH Jo Jeal ay} je spies

‘pajoll}sal a3inb s1juoly 8403s pue|ad)|

Juawarow uelijsepad 10113sa. U0 pue JuswWwaned apim
a1 Jo a|ppeJls s}sod pue sexoq }sod ‘sexoq auoyda|a} ‘subig

BLiv
HJLVM

Kempeou ojul Buidwn( ajdoad ul }nsai sualiieq ueliysapad
SNONUIIUOD (D1}4R4} YO0|q pue AemylesaH Buoje yied Ajieiodwel sied

‘Bupyied Jeo se pasn ale
s]@a.)s jJuaoelpe ay} ul sjuswaned ay |

‘peou pue juswaed

Page 13

‘suspJeb areand

usemyaq uonulep J0og | 'sa|o1yan Buruany Aq payoojq Apjoinb syeb Aemyjeay oy

senssl ay |

abpnq pue awifal aduRUSIUIRW JBB|D B JO }OB| AQ paulwlapun
Butaq si yey} aaljeriiul Ayjenb poob e si usaig) 8y} uo sWwaydg

Jutod Builesw Jo dojs Ixe} ‘eords jo doip ou SI 818y JusIdINSUl
aJe BuIssoid molleu pue uoljels punole edoeds ueliysepad palolisey

}1x8 uo suabuassed deuy pue
S8SN( 0} SS8I9E Y20|( SIallleq UrlI}Sapad

Uy e

fBorens wiesy




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



ﬂ [
._mmﬁh-r._
Ennl i

llllLfl.llllllll

-

_ﬂm..—ﬂ_‘ﬂwwﬂ—n—ﬂ’n :

gt

i
[
i
e

L

\uaBEg M

g
%]

AVMHLY3H WVHNIOVQ 40 2ining ayp 104 Bujuueld

\‘ %
%@A‘Wmﬁ ‘

VT REETYY

S81n0J ssedoe ol |ignd s|qissod [ Bullsixe [ZIIZIIIIIIIII

Arepunoq ays EZ

_WooL _
,w00g8

_wogl _
woolg |
Jwoool |
WG/ _
wosy _
Jwosge |
wooll |
wostl |
wooze |

salliunijodd( uswdol|ara(] 8]q1SSod |

fom S— |

1O 8}is
O 8lis
L4 8us
4 981s
ERAIS
asis
1D 8s
J9s
g 9ys
LV 8}s
Vv oys

9

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



ays ajowod 03 Japior

Page 17

ue|d uonedsusbay 0L'¢

10380 anu ) pris
ABajeng uoneisuabey
AVMHLY3IH WYHNIOVQ 40 31nin} 8u3 1o, d



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



"SN}e1S OIAID JO 808|d B 918810 0} UOI}IqWER UR 8)RI}SUoWap
pue JUBWSOUBYUS [BIUBWUOIIAUS S840 }| "YBnoloq 8y} Jo suoljiquie uoljelausabal
8y} 0] UOI}NQIIIUOD pue sdURBUBIUIRW BUIOBUO JO SWIS} Ul 9|qRUIRISNS S| UOISIA 8Y |

'JueJ1Ind pue d11031s1Y Yo ale jey} saAljeljiul ubisep uequn pue
adeospue| o1691e41S 8Y] 0} 8INLIIUOD puk ‘S8}IUN PROJ Y] }BY] SIUSWUOIIAUS [RIJUBPISI
pue [1ejau a8y} jo Ayjenb syl soueyus o} |eljuslod ayj sey 3| ‘a|eos ajelidoidde jo Buleq
se ||jam sk ‘a|qejdepe pue aalsuodsal aq 0} ybnous Buou}s pue peoiq SI UOISIA 8y |

‘ABajeu)s o1wouode pue ubisep

uequn ‘eian}ndiAljAs paulquod e ybnolayl pasijeal 8¢ p|nod 840848y} uoljeisushoy
‘Juswebeurw pue Juswaindolid aielidosdde uo Buipuadap ‘enbes| umo s}l ul peou e se
KemyjeaH ayj Aj13uspi pinood jey3 uoiyisodoud o13ewelp e ‘wia) Buoj ayj ul ‘pue a|qises}
‘g)dwis e sI}] "saljliolid [eIUSWUOUIAUS JUSLIND S}08|Jal ABajeu]s |eljeds 8siaAIp-0lq
SIy] "einquiile Aay e se susaib uado o uoljisodsip sy} pue yipim }8alis Jo Ayisosaush
ay1 Buisn ‘wnjaloqJe Jeaul| e se AemyiesH ayj Jo eapl 8yl sejowoud 1deouod ay |

'SjulelISU0D ubisep ueqin pue
senss| Je|noljied aie 818y} UOI}O8S OB U| "UOISIA Bujdeiqua-||e ue ajelaualb 0} A}1jus ue

Sk paJapIsuod usaq sey adojaaus peod 8|oym ay} jey} sse.ls o} juepiodwi Si 3 Joremoy
‘sishjeue jo sesodund a8y} 10} SUOI}O8S 881y} OJUl PBPIAIP usaq sey AemyjesH ay |

AD31eJls |eneds asJaAlp 0Iq v :S|esodoud

>~ .

103200|-00 UpM A1iq a62Q MU B 10§ APR}S
ABajesig wieay ol

6o aboy

AVMHLY3H WVHNIOVQ 40 2ining ayp 104 Bujuueld

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



JIgRY [BIN}OS)IYDIE JSaIBIUI
1S8J8)Ul [BUOSESS 1}S8I8)Ul

w o> yblay

wog>:1ybiay
(J0IS[9OX8 SNuIXel4) F_m@ COEEOQ 10261

19911 § peolg JaMo

sanes| a|duind yiep :jsessul

we>: 1ybiay

(esuadnd eoijenAs snbe4) Somwm G_QL DAH_ : w_\\ﬁﬁ

r~
~—

BLUNEICIERECITT] .W _\ @ r

wog>:1ybiay

Fyosag i 9L-GL-vl-gl

(eonjen|As snbey;

peoy pjouly

||oWS Wes|eq }saiajul

wog>: bley
AY10 BsIBAIPOIG (}S8IBIUI

d .
- ('sisuspeueod x snin on:LQ_QOﬂ_ v_Qm_m UCQ\WI : N_\
1
1
1
. 1
TN wog>: jubray 6 Ll "
(O USIBIUZ) JINQOJ SNOJBND) & || E B H

.- - peoy sumopmoy ? _ yieq abuelo jsaieiul
JIGRY [BAN}O8)IYDIE JSIBIUI w O _\
w Gg>:1ybiay

areuid) spisnied snoJan() 6

woe>:1yblay
spjsan|As snuid) auld S}00S : /

(

JIGRY [BAN}O8}IYDIE }SBIBIUI

el s

w Gg>: ybray

Rel - |1ady sujie) :3saisjul
Oeo seinounpag payeal ajdind) e adnd INQgod snoJand : 0L-8

wGz>:ybiay

A= 1E8) MO |IM BHUM © 9 -G ¥

-,
— =4 1
1
= 1
|— 1
|
) =
E |
= 1
= 1
|—'g
lgey [eanyosyyoue sedeyur T ,' _— ﬁ 1gey [BIN108}IYOJR 11S8usul
> - . " w og> 1 3ublay
wog>: ubray /m _- o
1
(sidsjouna x x1ue) D Je ayun TOo- N 1 (oljopi908 snuee|d) .
Yode| pieyuna : €-¢ ) £ ) aue|d UopuoT |
_ - - 1
Tl -
- —
. 1 £ =
1200]-00 Yjim Aelq] weyusBeq meu e 1oj Apmig Ajjiqiseay 1= "-w i
fBoreng wieay onand Peoy o 1 ~qﬂ £5
ABares)g uoljesauabay bmwt A3 .-ﬂ\k 1
AVMHLYIH WVHNIOVQ Jo 8iningsu1 ol Bujuueld l"'—ml &
-

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



‘Buo| sysew om} Ajuo sBuiysew Bez Biz pue yipIm WWQG 8¢ PINOM SBUI| MO|[OA

"94N}luiny }98.3S J8Y10 Y}IM paulquod Jo sBulp|ing uo pajunow ag pjnom A 1D [[e asim
Y17 'suwn|od Bulybi| 1o sysod Bullsixe uo Ajjnjeed pajesodiodul aq pjnom asn A1aaijep
pue pajqesip 4o} Bulyled wia}11oys ay} 82104us 03 SUBIS JO JaqINU WNWIUIW 8y |
"}9aJ}s 8y} ul sajod jo Jaquinu 8y} 8SIWIUIW 0} S8INJONIIS J8Y}0 0} Paxly IO paulquiod aq
pinoys subis pue ‘paau Jed|d e S| 848y} Ssa|un subis A1oje|nhai-uou ou 8q p|Nom aiay |
‘RemyjeaH 8y} UO Pa}ePOWWOIIL 8¢ P|NOM UOIjRWIOUI [eI}USSSS Bulkaauod subis AjuQ

S81N0J SN( JNOJ Y}IM PaleId0SSe S8ssnq Jo
slaquinu ay} ajepowwiodde 0} snolaush aie shq-Ae| ey 'siebBuassed dn yoid sesnq sy}
8|IYM D1}JB1} JO MO|} 884} MO||e 0} pue ‘BuiSS0ID 8y} Je SS04d 0} sueliisepad abeinoous
03 ‘abueyoiajul [epow Ases afeunodus 0} UOIje}S 8y} Jo apIs Jay}e uo pajelsodiooul ale
shq-Ae| peajsu| ‘Aemabeliied apim e Buljeald a|iym uoll}sabuod Jajealh 0} pes| us}jo ued
Koy 1eY) s3sebbns Buiyuiyl JuslIn) 'saue| snq alesedas B apn|oul 81048484} JOU S80P
awayos ay | 'A1ajes sajowouid jey} adeds prou paxiw e Jo S| 90uassa ayj} paebal siyy u|
"Jayjoue Jano suo Burinoaey} uey} Jayies A|jenba siasn peol ||B SI19pISU0D dWwayds ay |

‘Buissoud

uoljels ayj e sjybi| Burjoeas yoinb sinsus 031 paispisuod aq pjnoys BuIssod uipnd, v
'sBuljre. paenb ou pue Buiaed a|130e] ylim suelilsepad o) Aejep asiwiuiw 0} pajedipul
aJe sBuIss0.d Jo sjnohe| ssoloe-1ybielig, 'sqe|s (nd asiwiulw 0} sqJay paddoup je
pasodoud aJe squey jueipenb pue ‘sbuipjing a8yl yum |a|jeted urewsal saul| ey 'Snoo}
JIAID pue |Ie}al B sk 9dueliodwl s} 8240fulal pue AemyleaH 8y} JO UOI}08S SIY} yJew o}
uolpisodwod ay} Jo Lied se pared aq ||Im Jey) Aemabeliied sy} sepnjoul Siy | "awli} ym
||om Jayleam ||IMm Jey] S|elIajew |eanjeu [euolliped) jo a11aed jybil e yiim uoljesiyioads
uol3onJisuod pue Buiaed jo Ajijenb ey} ul Juswisaaul ue sesodoid sweyds ay |

1uswalburlly [edausg): abplig, ayl ;| U0I108S
: sjesodold g'e g

101890]-00 M AJBIQIT WEYUSBE MBU B 101 APNIS AJI[IGISESS
ABajenig wieey olgng

ABaje.ng uoneIsUsBay

AVMHLYIH IWVHNIOVQ 10 8ininy 8y} Jof Buiuue|

629 obed aas
“Juawbeuy Jo s|iejep Jo4

ebplig, ayy 1oy 1no Ae| pasodoiyg

Page 23



Butned ajoe; ybnouyy Buijueld [ s||146 991} oyodsag

140 - doup 1xe} [ Aeq Bupyied pajqesiq

soYyouaq auojs }se)

S)o.J 9]9AD p|aI}ays [991S SSo|UIRlS

Buiusem piezey [ Buissold peod je (ww QL X 0GL X 00E) SY20|q 8}ueI
usalf jeydse ol3sew :yjed 819h)

sBe|} aluelo

sBe|} U0}SYIOA

Kemoabeliied sjjes ajiueio

— AN M T IO O~ 00,

00G/1 @|e2s ‘,8bplg, 8y} jo Juswbely

"94n3n} 8y} ul 8dueqnisip a|qissod wouy

swa}sAs J004 8y} }09304d 0} S8DIAISS JO SWILY Ul 8|1481S, 8q A||ROpI P|NOYS BUOZ SIY ] "Ydua.}
Buijue|d aa.} pajedipap e A||I3USSSS JOA0 UOI}ONIISUOD Plib 981} palard|ijued snotaush

e Buijeald Aq |10s pajordwodun a|qe|IeAR JO WG JO WnWUlW & 8insud pjnoys ubisap jid
991 "ybnoiog ayj} Ag sourUSIUIBW O} JUSWHWWOD dY} [|IM Sk 8PB}S 1Xau ay} Je [ed1}140 8¢
|11m Apn3s uol}ed0| [1B}8p W "Jusuodwod [eifajul |BIJUSSSS UR Sk 19}0RIRYD SAIJOUIISIP B
a1ealo pue joedwl aielpawwi apirosd pjnom Asy | ‘pajewisaiapun aq jou p|noys }oalls

8y} 03 @YW |[IM saaJ} [eanid|nds eS8yl JeY] UOIINQIIIUOD 8] "S8INJONIIS PUR S8DIAISS
punouf mojaq Bulisixe uo puadap ||Im Ing Buioeds wQ) uo umoys Ajpeo.uq si Bulue|d 8ai]

"}9813S 8y} Jo uoljewiue
abeInoous 0} sas|e puewap a8y} se pajelodiodul pue Aajes pue Ajluswe ‘uoi}edo| Jo swis}
Ul POSSaSSE 8¢ P|NOYS SOOUSDI| JI_YD puB 8|qe)} puk S||B}s }oyle|y a|qeinp pue ‘esodind

10} 314 ‘A31jenb [BIN10831YDIR JO 8¢ PINOM S18}8YS SN( dY} SB YONS SJUSWS|S [BINJO8HYIIY

|esodoud jo y/ uoijoes

101800]-00 Yy AJBIQIT WeyusBeg mau & 10} Apnig
ABejeng wieey olgnd

fBe1ENS UONEIBUEBEY

AVMHLYIH IWVHNIOVA 10 aininy auj Jof Bujuue| 4

Page 24



uol3e}S 8y} SpIeMO} 8BpIIg BY] JO BPISYINOS BY} WOIY MBIA

Page 25



M “m ” m AVMHLV3IH WYHN39VQA &

> ainjny 8y} Jog Buluuelg

Page 26



Peoy UsaID Usiepy

‘Buissoud [euobelp
ueliysapad oy s1ybi| o1pjea) e sexoq yum yibusi |y ay) pasodouid aie shem 804D

O e 98 ™

'sjutol passbbels yiim o9 x 009 Jo uoisuswip
wnuwiulw ‘sqe|s 8}810U02 }sed-ald 0} paoueyus S| uoljediyioads JuswaAed |BIBUSS

-
1
)
1
[l
1
1
[l
)
1
[l
10043 peoig Lmz,o.___
[
1
1
[
1
1
[
1
1
[
1
1
[

peoy plouy
‘pepous usaq sey 3 aleym pasodouid
sl juawsajlelsulal ebpeH 'sbuljies paddol moq ‘Mo| ‘Jualsisuod pue abps gley ajluelb

AemyyesH
1Z Uoioes
opIM WG/ ulyl e yum pasodold aie susaib ay} 0} efpe padueyuse ue pue speolt apis ay}
uo suaalb ay} jo abps ay} uo pajed0o| 8 03 Sayduaq a|qeus o} pasodoud ale syoeq InH

L T—

‘obpluq ay} 1e AemyjesH ayj 4o} se AemyjesH oy}
}0 U0I3198s sy} 0} Ajdde uoijeu1piood ainjiuiny jealls pue abeubis o) ABajells Jejlwis

PEOY SUMOpMOY

"abpliq sy
e Aemyjea 8y} JO JeY} Yd}ew Pinoys SUOISUSWIP oy Sed JayHa u| 'ypim juswaned
2y} @onpal 0} paubi|eal 8¢ 0} POdU PINOM JBY} BUI| g8y 8y} o y3Bua| [ny ay3 uo joedwl
Ajrennualod pinom siy} ing Guaweaed ay} o0jul pallasul 8q P|Nod syuspul 1o ‘Jea} pue prom s
1eaM 19339 10} S}ies auelh ypm pauyep Bulag uswaaed sy} jo uoipiod usppliiono
8y} Y}Im paule}al aq ued gJay oy} Buipliiano jo Juswabuelie Buiisixe sy} Jay}ig

198115 peoig

‘AemylesH ay} uo suoi}do omy aie aiay |

AemyiesH ayl g Uooag : sjesodold g’ g

BUET W3 YoINO

101890]-09 Y} QI weyusBeq mau e 10} Apnig
ABejeng wieey olgnd
fBe1e.g UoEIBUSBaY

AVMHLV3H WVHN39VQ 10

qiseaq

04 Buluue|g

Page 27



pejeuIpI00d si Buijue|d 881} pUB 8INJILINL }88U3S ¢

uaym AemyjeaH ey} umop suoljounl ayj jo |eijusjod
% 7 y ¥ 7 3

101890]-00 M AJBIQIT WEYUSBE MBU B 101 APNIS AJI[IGISESS
ABajenig wieey olgng

ABaje.ng uoneIsUsBay

AVMHLYIH IWVHNIOVQ 10 8ininy 8y} Jof Buiuue|

ay) sajelisn
Wk o i

eliejew Buiaed

suea.b oy} jo Jajwiiad 0} sBuljies + abpaH
Burjue|d ssi} uswiosdg

ume| maN

$8youaq auols 1se)

usalb jeydse ol3sew :yjed 89h)

sBe|} aliuelo

Kemoabeliied sjjes ajueio

— AN M T 1O © ~

008/

-

| 829s ‘AeMU}BOH DY} UO JaUI0D B JO Jusube.

Page 28



eale
8y} 03 sayeo Buibeanodus pue [qggT wody Buipuny
Jafbeuew aijus) salpiedoud | asinbas Aew siy | ] saiyj1oe) 18)103 o1jgnd Buisesioul
umo | ‘sajjiedoud p81eI00SSY ‘abeubis Buiroidwi spn|oul Juswaroidwl

pP81RI00SSY pue UOpuUOT JO seaue pa}sebbng 'saljl|1oe) d1ayy Bulroidu| e

wiJey Joys pue uopuo 'SI0}SBAU| B}BAlId Ul 18Y}in} }S8AU| 0} U8y 8J. SISUMO [[B|A 8Y | 8y} Ul Juswisanu| aining sbeinoouy
Sainseaw uoljusns.id
9WIJID puUB SBAlIeI}Ul JUsWasbeurWw O1jjel}

pue podsuel} o1|gnd ‘saljl|1oe) |BO0| ‘AemyiesH ‘urep Bujuue|d pue syuswssibe

aggl's syuswdo|anap 8y} JO 84njonJsedyul Buipn|ou| syuswasosdwl 90| U01308s Yyhnody} seale Aiepuodas

Jado|snep/sioisanul Jusweelfe 9ol | O} opeW 8 0} SUOIINQLIIUOD) "BaIR 841USD UMO} 8y} anoidwi o3 AeemyiesH ayj punoJse

wJe} Joys 2007 | Aq pepiaroad Buipund | punode sjosfoid Juedlyiubis Jo Bulpuni 9ol uoi}08s saljunyoddo yuswdolenap asn

(uolyoe 03 oym)
9|eoSsaW| | uolyeluswa|duw $824Nn0G Pulpun4 3A8|Yor 0} MOH uooYy

Ue|d 1usweaoidud| 8J1ua?) UMo|

ue

d U010y WJa| 11oyg

Page 29

oo ;
fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLYIH NVHNIOVA 10



sdnoJg Ajunwwo)

uolsinoid

Bupjem pue Buloko
Y}IM pajeIoosse
S1S00 MO| A|BAlje|ay
‘Juswiedsp
shkemyBiH ¢ssauisng
eo0| Aq paiosuods

PaY20] 8 UBD YdIym syied 8|9AD) JO UOISIAOIY
Syjed 9|9AD JO UOISIAOIY

‘uolIsIA ybnouoq essush
e o Jied se pans|yoe g ued Jodsued}

sessaulsng 9q 0} spuels sdnouf Ajlunwwoo pue ssauisng 8|geuleIsns aiow aplAoid 0} JepJo
wJe} Joys aggn 8|0A0 JO UOISINOIH 1200 3sBuowe podsuely ajqeuleisns sbeinodouy Ul BujoAd pue Buyem Buzouwold
ue|d AemyjesH
83} 0} ul paul| 8q 0} sebuey)
KemyiesH ayj uo s||eis
1oyJew jusuewlad jo Bulysijgeise
10} MO||e 0} sheq Buppied mainey
(sulwi 0g'69)
uoljednp Bunjied pajiuwl| Jof siayjo
se ||jam se Bulpeojun/Bulpeo| 4o} sheq
Y}IM 8UIT MO[|8 A 8|qnoQ Jusws|dw|
BAIIN08XT
Juswiedsq oy} 01 buipodal ybnoayy persiyoe eq ued) (zdD) suoz
wJe} Joys sfemybiH 997 shemybBiH Bupped wiey poys asijeuoled [[IMSIY| | Bupped psa|joJiuo) Bullsixe Buipuswy
suoljedl|gnd
[e00| BUIISIX8 OJUI 81IM pUR J8}}18|SMBU 8}BUIPI00D
0} Jebeuew a13usd UMo | /A1uoyiny (2007
“(311Ing sty usym
Aseiql) ayy ul) A|jed0o| alow pue paso|o aAey sdoys
Jaye play aq p|noys aghew yorym ‘wnio aipus)d SINOAE|
UMO ] "UOIJRULIOJUI 81eUIWBSSIP O} JaJ18|SMau 0} sebueyd pue sassaulsng mau
agggn ‘sseuisnq Burpuny |1ouno) Je|nbay 'a1sqam (mojaq 8es) AemyesH a|qissod "B 811U80 J01ISIp 0} SjUBWaAoIdWI
[eoo| ‘Jebeuew ‘90140 s Jabeueln | pue subieduweo Buljeyiew ojul yul| \/ "SI18}8|Smau pue sebueyd (noge suoljedlignd
wJe} Joys 9J1U80 UMO | 911U UMO | SSeuIsNg pue UMo} Ul sejepdn Jenbey Bullsixe ybnoay} uoljew.oful 8pIAcld
(uo1joe 03 oym)
s|eosauWl | uoljejusws|du $804Nn0G Bulpun4 9A81Yoe 0} MOH uoljoy

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLV3IH WVHNIOV ¥

ue

d U010y Wa| 140Ul

S

Page 30



ABajeuis podsuely
Ypm ul paiy

pue WwJs} wnipsw
9y} ul swealsAs

ABaje.is wiess o1gqnd ayj
0} payul| 8q p|noys sdojs snq ayj} jo Buluol}isod

‘(uoisia padreduwl

UMOPIUNOD) 10 A311gow padiedw) spasu |eloads
‘WwiJe} poys juolels agqny eyl Jo Juswdojanepal sAlsusyalduwod | yiym ajdoad Aq a|qisseooe pue Buipybi|
By} ul Buipyb 3y} Inoge punolBispun UOPUOT YHM YIOAA Ja11aq ‘'sdois snq Je (UMOpPIUNOO
wey pue abeubig 'B'8) A}I|10€4 UOITRWIOLUI JaPuUBSsSsed
wnipsw ‘uopuUOT }Se3 ul }s8Aul 0} suepiroad a)elodiooul pinoys jusweroidull
—1}oys 141 141 podsuely Buibeinoous — saly|1oe) Jo Buipelbdn aburyDJIaIUl WIS} WNIPBW/1IoYS
8J1U80 UMO} 8] JO JUBLIUOIIAUS
pue JuswdojaAsp sSauUISNg 8y} 0} UOIINQIIIU0D
ueOIHUDIS B 8)ew [|IM Jey] SeAljelliul pue s1osfoid
AfIpusp| *e41ua) UMO | AemyjesH 8y} Ul JusullsaAul
1S00(Q 0} sueal}s Bulpuny |euollippe asn
‘ade0s}88.)s |BOO| pue
sBulp|ing o eoueleadde anoidwi 0} SjUBIB/SpUNy
Jo} Ajdde 03 ssauisnq [eoo| ebeinoou] 'syosfoud
suolesiuefio JabJe| 8|buIS 104 10 BA1308(|00 B Sk Buipuny 4o} SjuswaAoldwl
Arepun|on pue Ajddy Buipun4 uesdoin3 ‘1ebpng uoljessusbey [e1uBWUOIIAUS 10} pajeubisep
Ajunuwiwoo [eoo| 9|buIS ‘Buipun4 |lemauay pooyinoqybian aJe eyl syebpng Bulsixe punj yoyew
‘Jabeuew aajue) | youessal Areurwijaid Se 4ons sweal}s Buipuny Jo AJljige|ieA. | 0} pasn 8q p|N0o 8say | ‘sjuswsroidull
uliay uUMo] ‘ssauisng UM paJeIoosSe | SSassy ‘aljus)) Uumo| AemyiesH syl ul JuswiseAul SS8UISN( 811UBD UMO} J0J
1oys [eoo07'qggl S1S00 [RWIUIIA 1S00Q 0} suleal)s Bulpuny |euollippe as | sweauis Bulpuny mau a|gissod Ajusp|

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLV3IH WVHNIOV ¥

ue

d Uo1joy wia 3

Page 31



Awouoos Bulusas sy} usyibualls 0} Jepio
Ul ‘'suolgiyxe pue sasse|o ypm sanoy ybijimy,
ur dn Aselaql| ey uadQ '8|oym e Se 8J3u8d UMO} 8y}

sy 0} 8)e|suel] ||IM ey} dIYysIaumo JO 8suas e 81eald JUBWUOJIAUS }|INQ
wnipaw 0} paaN ‘AHuUNWWOoO 8y} JO SuaquIBU JUIaIp 8y} JO sway ul eaue 8y} Jo Ayjenb ayy
—Joys aggn agg | 4os1o]Ag pasn pue pasiolgnd Ajapim ag 0} Aseiqi | aulyap 0} BUIp|INg YJewWpPUR| & U0 SN0
wie} ‘suepiroad shejdsip Jamoy4 |eo0| pue
wnipaw Japiaodd | QggT ‘suoingliiuod aA}edwod jsow ey} Jo) uspus | “Aejdsip | spybi| sewisluy) pue jeuosess ybnoayl
—Joys 801A8S ‘g9 $S8UISN( |00 | [_UOSESS B 0] SUOIINGIIIUOD SSBUISN( [B00| JOJ YSY uMO} 8y} Jo soueseadde arosdw|
‘Aiesseosu
9J9YM JUBUIISOAUI
a1eAlid sbeinoouy
‘RemyresH ‘uelb Aluoyiny
a3y} uIypm [e007 JO SWeal)s Bulpuny [BUI8IX8 ‘'SUOIIN(LIJU0D
Lusel9 eyj uo ssaulsng [eoo| ybnouyy josloid ayy Jo Buipuny oy PASEIIET]]
|aweyog, se yons Asuow 801n0g uoljesiueh.o Areyun|on /Ajlunwwoo uea(q 1e ol|qnd 8}eo0| 0} S82EB| 4
SBWBYOS 8NUIU0) [ed0] 40 21jgnd 8y} JO Jegquiaw e woJf 8081d suo
pue 8291d e 8onpo.id 0} |[00YydS BUO 8gAB|A 'SND0) s8081d yons
wJe} S|00Y0s BIPAW SWOS Ule}qo 0} UoiHzedwod e ybnoiyy Ylim pajeloosse aplid OIAID JO S|ans|
wnipaw ‘agg ‘sysiye diysiosuods | unu A|qissod ‘pe oljgnd Ayljenb jo seodsid Jo sdsid e 1S00( pUR 8J43UBD UMO} 8y} UO SNO0L
—Joyg | |eoo| ‘ajdoad €007 ssauisng ‘qggn | @onpoJd 0} S1881UN|OA IO SISILIE [BOO| UOISSIWWOY) e apinoid 01 sjo8foid Wy o1lgnd 8sn

GV

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLY3H WVHNIOV 10

ue

4 Uoloy wia| 110ys

Page 32



WEN
wnipay

Qaggn 'sssuisnq
[eoo| ‘uebeuew

2J1U80 UMO |

suonnqliuod
ssaulsng [eo0| ‘qgg

sasiweld s|ge|eAe Jo BUISIlBAP. [BUOIBSI puR |BO0T
'S8SSaUISNG MU JoeJ}je 0} Sjuelf Ssauisng pue
S}UN Jaie)s ‘sasiwald JUBOBA JO A}l|IB[IBAR 1oMIBIN

911sgem |[eoo| pue ubredwed

BuisipeApe Yim Ul yul| 01 ABsjesiS "ssaulsng Joy
aoe|d e se AemyresH ay} 4o 8|1401d 1500q 0} ABa1eIIS
Bulpuelqg B JO UOI}E8IO 8Y} Ul }SISSE 0} Suado|aAsp
[e00| pue AjLIOyINe |BOO| ‘SSBUISN(] |BD0| SB

yons ‘umoy ay3 Buzowodd ul pajsessiul sdnolb ||

‘eale
[200| 8Y} 01 A}I1UBPI JO BSUSS B 1810 0}
3J]UB0 UMO} By} J0J pueIq B s]|geis]

wiey
wnipsy

S]00Yos
1e00| ‘s|doad |B20|
‘sseuisng |e007

‘aggn ‘yiesH
|e}USWIUOIIAUT

SJ188}uUN|OA
‘S10}NQ1J3UOD SPIBMO}
SU0IINQLIIU0D Arejes

[o18 ‘Bulnoy bop

‘Bulisyyl| 104 Sme|-8Ag 4O Juswadlojul] ubredwed
eIpaW [eo0| B wodt ANolignd ypm Buoje dn ues|o
8} Ul PBAJOAUI S|OOYOS D07 "Suoljesado ajeulp.o
-00 0} JeBrue|A 841U80 UMO| ‘uBredwed Jall|— IjUy

olgnd sy}

JO SJaquiaw pue s8ssaulsng [eoo| Aq pesn aq ued
Jey} Jaquinu Ino |[ed pajeubisep e ypm penbs iy,
Buisod Ay pue 11144e.6 013108ds B JO uoljeUBWS|dW|
‘PaAjoAUl S|o0YDs pue ajdoad [eoo| yiim ubredwed
Alreah-1q 1o renuue ue Buluuni Aq parsiyoe

aq pInoo siy | ‘buisod Aj} pue 131yelb /soueusiuew
punoJf/Bulues|o 188131 0} SjussAoIdwl

uo BuIsnooy seAljeliiul aplid o1A10 Buipoddng

KemyresH ay}

uo wieal o1|gnd ay} Jo sourseadde
8y} Buraoadwl uo wnjuswow

PlIiNg oy pesn 8q ueo siy |

"eOJE [BO0| 8y} Ul 9p1id DIAIO JO BSUBS
poob e sl alay | ‘AemyjesH sy} uo
aplid 21A1D UO 8S||e1ided pue puedx3

WG
wnipay

Jabeuew

9J1U80 UMO |
‘aggn ‘eipaw [eoo|
‘S8$S8UISNQ [BO0T

Seuwayds Je(luWls 1o
sjuedb Juswanoidwi
1uoJ} doys

ybnouyy poddns
adgn ejqissod

Y}IM SsauIsng [eooT
‘SUOIINQ1J3uU0d/SiuelB
Juswanoidw|

:ag9g1 Aqg siuelb Juswerosdwl JO UOISINOIH  "8J3u8d
UMO} 84} puno.e pue eipaul [edo0] 8y} ul ubiedwe))

'saljiedold J1eyy Jo aued

8J0W 8Ye] 0} $8ssauIsng sbeinoous
pue sjuelf yuswaroidwi ebejuody
doys Jo s804n0s 8|qissod Ajljusp|

W)
wnipsj

aggn 'sssuisng
arenlld ‘usbeuew

2J1U80 UMO |

$SuUoIINQIIIu0D
ssauisnq

[B00] ‘paljijuspl
80 0} sweal}s
Buipuny aining

sos|wa.d a|qe|ieAe Jo BuisiaAape [euolfal pue 207
'S8SS8UISNQ MaU JoBI}E 0} sjuelb ssauisng pue
S}IUN JB}Ie)s 'sasiwald JuBdRA JO A}[IGR|IRAR 1OYIRIA

'a)Isqam Qgg LIsixe Apeaie Jey} saysgem ajepdn

ssaulsng

911U80 UMO} Joddns 0} 8}Isgem

e dojana( ‘sseulsng Joj eoe|d

e se AemyjesaH 8y} Jo ajjoid 1s00g
‘A}1uspl 3s00q 03 ABajeuis Bulpuelq
e aABY 0} UMO} 8y} Buljowoud ul
pajsaleiul sdnodb ||e Buljeulplo-00)

ajeosawl |

(uolyoe 03 oym)
uolrejuswa|du)

$804N0g Bulpun4

8AB14OR 0] MOH

ooy

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLV3IH WVHNIOV ¥

d

SUOI10Y W8] wn|

Page 33



wJa} Buo|
- WNIpa

adan
‘'siadojanap |e007

paJinbal
10U Bulpuny} 1o8iiq

SOWBYDS MaU WOl4 aslie 1ey}
Sjusplisal Joy saljiunyoddo Bururely pue JuswAojduws
abeJIN0oUs 0} SU8d0o|aASP UM YIOM O} |I0UN0D 8Y |

eale
8y} ul 9jdoad |eoo| 4o} seljunpoddo
1uswhojdwe mau eyesl)

wa) Buo|
—WnNIpsiN

salpiedold
pa}eI00SSYy

pue UOpUOT

‘aggn ‘siedojanag

paJinbal
jou Bulpuny 1o811Q

RemyresH
9y} uo sdoys pooy 1sey) pue A}ueyd ‘JunodsIp
JO Jaqwinu sy} ul uoisuedxa ayj Aj|nyeied Jspisuo)d)

s8ssaulsng
[euOljRU pUE SjUspuUadapul yjoq ‘sesn Jayio pue
JueIne}sal ‘|1ejal Jo Ayslien seridosdde ue pienbajes
01 ¥88S ||IM Ydlym Aoljod Jusuiisaaul Aemyies
o14108ds e jusws|dw| 'SSauISNg O A}ISIBAIP

ajowloud 0} - s811u8d0ud PajeIo0SSy pue UOpPUO]

— SJBUMO [[BIAl @Y1 Y}IM BUIIOM |1DUN0D [BO07

"BJE BY] Ul XIW [[B1ad 8y} uodn pjing
'$8SSBUISNQ JO S8dA} JUBIBLIP IO}
80e|d 8AI1}0RIJIE 8J0W B ABMUIRSH BU}
Buiyew ybnoayy 813usd 10141SIp 8y}
ulyyim sasn Jo Ayisiealp sebeinoouy

wey
wnipap

SsauIsng |eoo|
‘aggn ‘Jebeurw
8J}UBD UMO |

901440 s Jabeuew
811U8D) UMO |

saljiunpoddo

1uswhojdws [Bo0| SE ||am Se eale 8y} ul
podsuely Joy Sa|gelaWI} PUB WNJo4 oljgnd e ‘SjusAs
|2O0] 4O S|IB}8P ‘SO21440 PUE S}B|INO [1B}8 MaU JO
UOIJEO141]0U ‘JUBWUOIIAUS }|INQ 8y} Ul SjuswsAodwl
pue safueyd ssedwodus pINoYs 1818 |smau ay |

s$noo4 Bulleyiew e AemyiesH

8y} oAb pjnom a13uad Um0} 8y}

ul saipiunpoddo pue sebueyd s|ielsp
1Ry} Ja18|smau Buibebus pue Jes|d v

w.e}
wnipspy

sessaulsng
[e007°'agd1 141

paJinbal
Jou Bulpuny}1o8liq

,8J1U80 8INsI8| [BO0| JO Uoljeal)) ‘Buluers

8y} Ul saipiunyioddo Bululp UMop }S/se4ed ybnoayy

RemyresH je Jayo ainsis| arolduwl| ‘SaAljel}ul

agg pue podsuely Ag payioddns pue paijijuspl aq
01 sa11IA130e BulusAs 104 saiiunpoddo uswdojersq

pauleisns aq AuWouoos Bujuans
ue Jeyj JapJo Ul uoisiroid podsuedy
Buluane enosdwl 03 8NUITUOYD)

eale 8y} 0jul pabeinodus aq
0} S8ssauIsSNg paseq BulusAs alow
— Awouoos Buluans sy} ebeinoouy

a|eosaWl| |

(uoijoe 03 oym)
uoleiuswa|dul|

$924n0g Bulpun4

8A9|Y0. 0} MOH

ooy

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLV3IH WVHNIOV ¥

eay d

SUOINDY Wla| W

Page 34



ssauisnq

a1eAlld ‘'susdijo
Ayj1gisseooe
s.qgg ‘1ebeuew

wis} buoT 8J1UB0 UMO |

poddns

aggn slqissod
Yim ssauisng [eo0]

aJ1ue0 Bburddoys |eoo| Ajpusliy ajdoad,
e se AemyjeaH sy} Aedyiod 0} pasp "ubiedwed
BIpaW |BOO| 'SI81S|SMBU SSBUISN] Ul SB|0IHY

'SIY} Ylim [eap 03 $824n0s Buipuny
9|q1ssod Ajllusp| 'ss800R pa|gesip
anodwil 0} pesau sy} Inoqge sis|elal
1sBuouwle ssausleme 8} 8SESI0U|

wes} ue|disisew
weyusbeq yinog

uopuoT

wuay buo 104 Jodsued |

saluow 90|
U01109s 84NNy 41

seluow 901§ Buisn pspunj eq ued SIy |
‘ue|disisew weyusbeq yinos
8y} yym |a|jesed ul dn peyiom aq 0} Spssu SIy |

‘uoljels »oog weyusbeq

0} UOI1308uUU00 ajelidoidde

apinold piNod G/ | JO UOISUB}X®

8y 'GL| PUB ¥/ | Se YOons ‘S8dIAles
snq Buiisixe pusixe pue AemyjesH
8y} uo uolels punoabiepun

8} pue sasnq usamiaq abueyolsiul
sy} dojanapal 0} 8q p|nod suoljdo
a|qissod sy "eaJe 8y} ul uoisirold
podsuely Jo malnal Jusnbaly syl

uo paseq aq pinoys siy| ‘AemyjesH
weyusbeq ypm syuswdoarsp mau
Jo8uu00 0} podsuedy oljgnd spinoid

(uol130B 0} OYM)

a|eosaul] | uopeluswa|dw

$82INn0G BuIpun4

aA9|Yo®. 0} MOH

ol

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLV3IH WVHNIOV ¥

SUOI10Y Wis| BuoT

Page 35



pulobuQ

741 ‘s4epinoid
yied Jed ‘wes)

Buniied agagn

Juswyiedsap skemybiH

'u01308s Jodsuely

0S|e 889G "UOI1BUIPI00D Yied Jed parosduwl pue
seale Bupjied |e10adg malney "uol1sabuod asl|al
pue Ajayes anoidwil 03 sUOIIOIIsal Bulyied 80404ug

5S10U SS80X8 J9A0 UI9oU0d S| 81ay |
‘syuswanoldwi Juswabeuew Olyel |
‘O14jeJ} PEOJ JO JusWwebeuew

BA1308448 ym parosdul Ajpuediyiubils
80 UBD SJUSWUOIIAUT "BaJR B}

Ul 8sn Jed JO UOI}O1IISaI PUB UOIJONPaY

BulobuQ

SjuR}NSUOD)
fuluue|d
‘JebeurWw 843UBD
umo] ‘aggl

ue|d Bulpuadg ybnolog

'S008

Alies ul ue|d Bulpuadg ybnolog wody oy paljdde
aJe sejuow aJunsug ‘pajuswelduwl Buleq aie
sjulod uoloB 84NSUS puR ApN1s Jusdal dn Mmoo

pauoiioe pue padojarsp
J8U}iny 8q 0} ApNIS Wieay oljand

pulobuQ

JabeueWw 841U80
umo] ‘adgn

paJinbaJ jou Buipun4

RemJspun sjuswsroldul sayj 0} spiebau
YlIM U011UBOD8I 8pIM UOPUOT 8WOS AemyiesH
ay1 aAlb 0} Y19 8Y3 Yiim 10e1U0d Jenhisy

(J0Rew 8y JO JUBWIBA|OAU|

a|eosaul] |

(uoroe 03 oym)
uoljejuswa|duw|

$804Nn0g Bulpun4

aA8IYOE 0] MOH

uopoYy

orv

fBojeng uoeIausboy
AVMHLY3H WVHNIOV 10

Suo130y BulobuQ

Page 36



Estimated costs for Phasel

Heathway "The Bridge"
Improvements

Item Description

Value

SUMMARY

Estimated Total For Civil Works
Estimated Total for Street Furniture
Estimated Total For Street Lighting
Estimated Total For Bus Shelters

Estimated Total For Trees and Tree
Grills

Estimated Line marking

10% Fees

Estimated Total for Value of works

£1,729,390.00
£87,495.48
£67,980.00
£49,044.00

£113,225.00

£2,500.00

£2,049,634.48
£204,963.45

£2,254,597.93

Page 37

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



AGENDA ITEM 6

REPORT FOR THE EXECUTIVE

24 MAY 2005

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HEALTH

BARKING AND HAVERING LOCAL IMPROVEMENT FOR DECISION
FINANCE TRUST STRATEGIC SERVICES
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

As a member of the Barking and Havering Strategic Partnering Board (SPB) the Council is
asked to endorse the above Development Plan.

Summary

The Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) partnership intends to deliver the facilities
needed to meet the health needs of the population over the next 20 years. The four new
schemes identified in the attached Strategic Services Development Plan (SSDP) continue
the redevelopment of primary care health facilities in Barking and Dagenham and
Havering.

The Council needs to ensure the vision and plans set out in this document reflect the
current and future needs of our population and take into account proposed new
developments and regeneration schemes.

Recommendation

The Executive is asked to endorse the Council’s support of the Local Improvement Finance
Trust Strategic Services Development Plan.

Reason

The Council’'s agreement to the LIFT SSDP will enable the SPB to submit the Plan and
progress the proposed schemes.

Contact:
David Woods Director of Housing and Tel: 0208 227 5700

Health Fax: 0208 227 5595

Minicom: 0208 227 5755

Email: david.woods@Ibbd.gov.uk

1. Background

1.1 The Barking and Havering Strategic Partnering Board (SPB) was established to
manage and deliver the process of securing a LIFT partner and to monitor the
development of LIFT locally. This Board draws its membership from across the
entire local health authority and social care community. Its role includes the
development of this and future Strategic Service Development Plans.

Page 39



2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

The Strategic Service Development Plan

The attached document (Appendix 1) sets out the Strategic Service Development
Plan (SSDP) 2005 for primary and community services in Barking and Dagenham
and Havering. It describes the vision of the local health community for an improved,
modern, patient-centred service and plans to develop premises and facilities to help
deliver the vision.

The Plan also details the steps forward that have taken place since the original
SSDP was written in 2002. The success of this progress is demonstrated by the
Barking and Havering LIFT scheme being recognised with an award for best LIFT
scheme in the country.

By bringing the plans together and working together to develop the Barking and
Havering LIFT, the local health economy intends to maximise the benefits of the
approach for the whole population. In the coming year many individual schemes
identified in the 2002 SSDP will open their doors to the public.

New Schemes Identified

Four new schemes are identified for future tranches of development:
Barking Town Centre

Hornchurch

Collier Row
South Rainham.

The Barking Town Centre scheme will be incorporated into the regeneration
scheme for the area. Barking and Dagenham Primary Care Trust (PCT) have
worked closely with LIFT to identify the space required. The planned facility will
provide a wide range of services for current residents and also cater for the
increase in population that will arise as a result of the new housing schemes.

Conclusion

The Barking and Dagenham PCT has agreed to support the Strategic Services
Development Plan (SSDP). The four new schemes identified in the Plan for future
tranches of development will, once formally included in LIFT programmes, provide
the opportunity to continue the redevelopment of primary care health facilities in
Barking and Havering. The proposed scheme for Barking Town Centre is an
essential component of the planned regeneration in that part of the Borough. It is
therefore recommended that the Council supports the SSDP for 2005.

Consultation
Colin Righy — Head of Finance - Housing and Health
Paul Feild — Legal Services

Rebecca Scott — Barking and Dagenham PCT
Corporate Management Team

Page 40



Background Papers Used in Preparation of this Report
e Report to the Executive 23" July 2002 — NHS LIFT
e Report to the Executive 15" April 2003 — Barking and Havering NHS Local
Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT)
e Strategic Services Development Plan 2005 — attached as Appendix 1

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

APPENDIX 1

BARKING AND HAVERING
LOCAL IMPROVEMENT FINANCE TRUST (NHS LIFT)
STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN

2005

Page 1 of 28
Page 43




BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

CONTENTS
R o £ =110 o SR 4
2 EXECULIVE SUMMIAIY ...ttt 5
3 Introduction and Background.................euueummmmiimimmniiiiiiiiiiees 6
3L OVEIVIEBW ..o 6
3.2 What IS LIFT 2. 6
3.3 Key OrganiSatiONS ........cceeeieieeeeeeeeee e 8
3.4 Key Population CharacteristiCS ...........cooovviiiiiiiii 8
4. Strategic Context/Case for Change ... 8
vt R [ a1 o To (¥ Tod 1 o] o RO PP PP 8
4.2 National POIICY .......coooiiiiiiiiii 8
4.3 Local Policies and Prioriti€S ..........coovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 9
4.4 Children’s ServiCes REVIEW.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 10
4.5 Primary Care StrategiC Services ReVIEW...........ccccvvvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee, 10
4.6 Oldchurch Park Development ..., 11
4.7 London Regional Office Primary Care Premises Audit........................ 11
4.8 Other Local Strategic Developments..........ccccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeee 12
4.9 Case for Change SUMMAarY........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee 12
5. Progress on tranChe 1 ...........uuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 13
6. Vision and Principles for Development ...............uuveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiees 18
6.1 INTrOAUCTION ... e 18
6.2 MOEl Of CAr... .. 18
6.3 Mental Health ... 19
6.4 HUMAN RESOUICES .....coiiiiiiiiiiii et 19
7. APPrOACH 10 LIFT ..uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieeb bbb 20
7.1 PrINCIPIES . . 20
7.2 SErviCe STANUAIAS ........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiib bbb 21
7.3 Barking & Dagenham PCT First Tranche Schemes..........ccccccccvvnnn.. 21
7.4 Havering PCT First Tranche Schemes..........ccooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 22
7.5 Further Phases Of LIFT ... 23
8. Financial Analysis and Affordability .............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiie 24
8.1 Financial CONEXL .......ccoveieeiieeee e 24
8.2 Second tranche SChemMES.........cooov i 25
9. Stakeholder Support and InvolvemeNt............ccooooiiiiiiiiie 25
9.1 INtrOAUCTION ... 25
9.2 Stakeholder SUPPOIT .....ccoeeeeeeeeeeeee e 25
10. Project Management and Associated Timetable.............ccccoovveiiiiiiiinnnnns 26
10.1  INErOTUCTION ...ttt 26

Page 2 of 28
Page 44



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

10.2 Project Management Arrangements and Timetable ........................ 26
10.3 Partnerships for Health ..., 27
10.4  TIMELADIE ... .uuiiiiiiiiiii e 27
I 1 [0 1517 YRS 288
Page 3 of 28

Page 45



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

1 Foreword
Barking and Havering NHS Local Improvement Finance Trust

The Strategic Partnering Board of the Barking and Havering NHS LIFT project
is committed to improving both the primary care estate and the access to
services in Barking & Dagenham and Havering. This aim will be pursued
through our Joint Venture Partnership, the Barking and Havering LIFT
Company: - a partnership that is expected to work for local people for a period
spanning at least the next twenty years.

Barking and Havering LIFT has gone from strength to strength. The success
of Barking and Havering LIFT has been demonstrated in 2004 by it being the
first LIFT in the country to have achieved financial close on two separate
tranches of projects (eight schemes in total), and by the award of ‘Best NHS
LIFT Joint Venture Established’ at the 2004 Public Private Finance awards.
Contracts signed so far cover the building of eight new primary care premises.

This success is based on close working between public and private sector
partners and a high degree of commitment to LIFT as a key component of
meeting the premises needs of the health service of the future by all local
stakeholder groups.

In the year ahead the benefits of LIFT will begin to be realised for patients and
staff as a total of five of the new primary care health centres are due to open
in 2005, one of which is already open at Thames View.

Page 4 of 28
Page 46



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

2 Executive Summary

In July 2000 the government published the NHS plan, a ten-year plan for
modernising and reforming the NHS. The overwhelming majority of patient
contacts with the NHS are with general practice and community services.
Ensuring that primary care services work well is therefore key to delivering the
NHS Plan.

The NHS Plan identified the urgent need to improve primary care facilities in
England as a key constraint to the development of services. The NHS Plan
states that the priority for investment will be those parts of the country - such
as the inner cities - where primary care centres are most in need of
improvement.

The government has provided the NHS with a vehicle for improving and
developing primary and community care facilities - NHS Local Improvement
Finance Trust (LIFT). The local LIFT is a joint venture between the
Department of Health, the local health care community and the private sector
and aims to develop and encourage a significant increase in investment in
primary care and community based facilities. Substantial progress has been
made towards this aim.

This document sets out the Strategic Service Development Plan (SSDP) 2005
for primary and community services in Barking & Dagenham and Havering. It
describes the vision of the local health community for a radically improved,
modern, patient centred service and ambitious plans to develop premises and
facilities to help deliver the vision. It also details the huge steps forward that
have taken place since the original SSDP was written in 2002. The success
of this progress is demonstrated by the Barking and Havering LIFT scheme
being recognised with an award for best LIFT scheme in the country.

By bringing the plans together and working together to develop the Barking
and Havering LIFT, the local health economy intends to maximise the benefits
of the approach for the whole population. In the coming year many individual
schemes identified in the 2002 SSDP will open their doors to the public.

This Strategic Service Development Plan offers a substantial and long-term
investment strategy for improving primary care infrastructure capacity and
quality.

The four new schemes identified in this SSDP for future tranches of
development will, once formally included in LIFT programmes, provide the
opportunity to continue the redevelopment of primary care health facilities in
Barking and Havering.

Page 5 of 28
Page 47



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

3 Introduction and Background
3.1 Overview

This document is the second Strategic Services Development Plan (SSDP)
for Barking and Havering and describes the vision and strategy for the
development of the primary and community care infrastructure in Barking &
Dagenham and Havering. The SSDP provides a strategic framework for
investment through a Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) arrangement.

The document sets out:

A shared local vision for primary and community service development

based on the health and social care needs of the populations of the

London Boroughs of Barking & Dagenham and Havering

= The means to meet national and local targets for improvements to primary
care facilities, thereby supporting improvements in primary care services

= Progress since the first Barking and Havering SSDP published in 2002

= Details of investment requirements and timescales for development of

required primary care infrastructure

3.2 What is LIFT?

The initials LIFT stand for ‘Local Improvement Finance Trust’. LIFT is a form
of public private partnership in which joint venture companies are formed with
ownership shared between NHS organisations and private sector companies.

Private sector partners to the NHS under LIFT schemes are selected through
a competitive tendering process and together the NHS partners and selected
private sector consortium form a local LIFT company. This LIFT Company is
set up to fund, design, build and maintain primary and community care health
facilities.

Decisions around what clinical services should be provided from the new
healthcare facilities built remain with the NHS partners.

3.3 Key Organisations

The Barking and Havering LIFT Company (LIFTCo) was formed on 4th
December 2003 to build and maintain primary care resource centres and
health centres in the two London Boroughs of Havering and Barking &
Dagenham. Barking and Havering LIFT, at the time it was set up, was only
the third LIFT project nationally to close contracts on new health centres and
set up a LIFT company.

Page 6 of 28
Page 48



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

The responsibility for providing primary care services and commissioning
secondary services for the residents of Barking and Havering lies with the two
local Primary Care Trusts (PCTs). These are:

= Barking and Dagenham Primary Care Trust
= Havering Primary Care Trust

Each PCT has three main functions:

= to improve the health of the population and address health inequalities
= to deliver primary care and community services
= to commission a range of services which meet the patients needs

Whilst these functions are the same for each PCT across the country, it is the
responsibility of each PCT to determine the most appropriate way to ensure
that these functions are discharged having regard to local circumstances and
the resources available.

The area served by this SSDP covers two London boroughs, both of which
are co-terminous with the two PCTs. These local authorities are:

= London Borough of Barking & Dagenham
= London Borough of Havering

Both local authorities are fully supportive of the Barking and Havering LIFT
project. Their support includes advice on site identification and on planning
issues. The development of appropriately located and resourced primary care
facilities are an integral part of both Boroughs community and regeneration
strategies.

The area has one NHS acute hospital service provider, Barking, Havering and
Redbridge Hospitals NHS Trust (BHRT), currently based at three main
hospital sites. These sites are King George Hospital in Redbridge, and
Oldchurch and Harold Wood Hospitals in Havering.

The area has one mental health NHS service provider: North East London
Mental Health Trust (NELMHT). In addition to hospital based mental health
services NELMHT provide a variety of community based mental health
services, many of which are provided in primary care health centres. Services
provided include those for adults, children, and older people, and also
provides services for people with learning disabilities

This SSDP is only concerned with the Barking and Havering LIFT, which
involves mental health services in the East Division of NELMHT, and
therefore discussion of services within the West Division, covering Redbridge
and Waltham Forest are excluded. Redbridge and Waltham Forest is also a
second wave LIFT, and has its own SSDP.

NELMHT has a large development agenda driven by the NHS Plan and the
National Service Frameworks, which affects its community services. A key

Page 7 of 28
Page 49



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

priority for the local NHS is to develop community based facilities to support
inpatient services and provide an alternative to hospital care, where
appropriate.

3.4 Key Population Characteristics

Barking and Havering lies on the North East edge of London. Havering has a
generally prosperous suburban population. Barking and Dagenham has many
of the deprivation difficulties associated with East London. The Barking and
Havering area covers an area of 388,000 residents, with 164,000 residents in
Barking and Dagenham and 224,000 residents in Havering.

The southern part of Barking, Dagenham and Havering is part of the Thames
Gateway development in which the government plans indicate substantial
population growth over the next decade. The ‘London Thames Gateway —
Health Services Assessment’ published in October 2003 predicts an increase
in population of 44,000 in Barking and Dagenham and 7,000 in Havering
between 2001 and 2016.

4, Strategic Context/Case for Change
4.1 Introduction

This SSDP is consistent with national and local priorities, and its
implementation will contribute to the achievement of the targets contained in
these. The main areas of policy that are influencing the development of this
SSDP are outlined below.

4.2  National Policy

4.2.1 NHS Plan and NHS Improvement Plan

The NHS Plan was published in July 2000 and remains the key national policy
driver. It summarises current government policy on the NHS and sets the
context for the modernisation agenda. It provides a planned programme of
investment and reform. It is intended to transform the health and social care
system so that it produces faster, fairer services that deliver better health and
tackle health inequalities.

The Plan states that:

“Many GPs will be working in teams from modern multi-purpose premises
alongside nurses, pharmacists, dentists, therapists, opticians, midwives and
social care staff. Nurses will have new opportunities and some GPs will
specialise in treating different conditions. The consulting room will become the
place where appointments for outpatients and operations are booked, test

Page 8 of 28
Page 50



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

results received and more diagnosis carried out using video and tele-links to
hospital specialists. An increasing number of consultants will take outpatient
sessions in local primary care centres”.

The NHS Plan recognised the central role of primary care in the NHS and
required that access to primary care be improved. The aims of the NHS Plan
are central to the service philosophy underpinning this SSDP.

The NHS Improvement Plan (2004) provides further support to the policy of
using LIFT to develop capacity within primary care in England.

4.2.2 National Service Frameworks

Local plans for future service provision are also shaped by the requirements
of National Service Frameworks (NSFs). NSFs set national standards and
define service models for a specific service or care group, put in place
programmes to support implementation and establish performance measures
against which progress within an agreed timescale will be measured.
Together these national strategies point to the need for expansion in primary
care provision to improve both treatment and prevention, and in the
management of long-term conditions.

4.3 Local Policies and Priorities

The national policies outlined above have been integrated fully into local
planning processes, most notably through inclusion in the Local Delivery
Plans (LDPs) of the two PCTs.

4.3.1 Havering and Barking & Dagenham LDPs

Both local PCTs have existing locally owned LDPs. These have been
developed in partnership with local health economy colleagues, and reflect
how the national priorities will be implemented locally. The various local
networks also feed into the development of the LDPs, as well as the local
Public Health departments. These plans detail the service developments in
primary care that will be housed in the new LIFT health care facilities. LDPs
for 2005/06 onward are now in preparation on the same basis.

4.3.2 Local Modernisation agenda

Both PCTs have identified LIFT as a key driver to support the delivery of the
local modernisation agenda:

= providing premises that allow for the delivery of modern health care
services accessible by, and local to the population they serve

= providing sufficient numbers of premises to provide accommodation for the
volumes of service we need to deliver to our populations

Page 9 of 28
Page 51



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

= providing suitable accommodation in the community to maximise the
amount of outpatient activity that can be delivered close to the patient’'s
home

= providing innovative premises that attract and retain staff

= providing premises designed to allow flexibility and encourage the ability of
the built environment to change with the needs of the service and patients

= encourage independent sector involvement

4.4  Children’s Services Review

Throughout 2004 Havering PCT in conjunction with Barking and Dagenham
PCT has been reviewing the configuration of Children’s Services. The agreed
impact of this review is for a move towards more borough based services than
exist currently. While details of premises needs have not been finalised the
need to provide elements of the borough wide children’s services in the new
LIFT buildings is clear. The functional content of tranche 1.3 and further
tranches of buildings will need to take this into account during the design
process.

4.5 Primary Care Strategic Services Review

During 2001 the two PCTs completed a Primary Care Services Strategic
Review. Its aim was to create a vision of the shape of Primary Care Services
in five to ten years time.

Drivers for change include targets contained in the NHS Plan and the
business case for the development of a new district general hospital in
Romford. The conclusions reached regarding the future vision for primary
care services was that there needed to be a significant shift from secondary to
primary care, both in terms of service and resource.

The vision saw re-packaged primary and secondary care services providing a
more local and accessible service. This would be primarily provided from a
hub of local primary care treatment centres, supported by local clinic services
as spokes with enhanced services being provided from GP practices. This
vision is central to the design of the new buildings being built as a result of
tranche 1 and of the new building proposed in this SSDP as part of later
tranches.

Primary care resource centres (PCRCs) which would be one-stop shops
providing a wide range of primary care services together with a wide range of
diagnostic and therapeutic services and would include partnership working
with NELMHT, social services and other agencies. The range of service
distribution, within a primary care setting was seen as including the following:

» Increase the number of GPs in the area at least to the national norm
= Increased workforce - Community, District Nurses and Health Visitors
= Increase in Specialist Nurse Practitioners working in GP premises

Page 10 of 28
Page 52



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

Diagnostics: X-ray, Ultrasound and Phlebotomy

Enhanced treatment services including acute outreach provision
Enhanced preventative services

Development of Practitioners with a specialist interest services
Specialist Clinics based in GP premises and/or PCTCs

Access to direct referrals by GPs and other healthcare practitioners
Therapists to be community based in PCTCs

Partnership Working with NELMHT, social services, other agencies and
the voluntary sector to be further advanced and services co-located in
primary care as far as possible

The work of the Primary Care Strategic Services Review has been fed into the
development of specific schemes for Barking and Havering LIFT.

4.6 Oldchurch Park Development

BHRT is, through a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) development, in the
process of building a new single site 859 bed acute Hospital at Oldchurch
Park in Romford. This will result in the closure of the existing Oldchurch and
Harold Wood hospitals (though plans for the Harold Wood hospital site
features in the strategy for primary care delivery in Havering PCT). The new
Oldchurch Park Hospital is scheduled to open during the spring of 2007.

As part of this development there is a intention to relocate much of the
outpatient activity from an acute setting into the community. A planning
assumption in the development plans for Oldchurch Park was the transfer of
30% of general outpatient and 100% of physiotherapy outpatient activity from
the acute setting into the primary care environment. The need to provide
primary care facilities to allow this transfer of outpatient activity is an important
driver behind the need for new primary care premises and behind the design
of these premises.

4.7 London Regional Office Primary Care Premises Audit

The premises audit commissioned by the former NHS London Regional Office
shows that prior to LIFT 96% of surgery premises in Barking and Havering fell
below the acceptable standard. Specific issues include compliance with the
Disability Discrimination Act. A detailed breakdown of the age, size and
condition profile of all primary care premises in Barking and Havering was
included in the previous SSDP so is not repeated here. The poor state of
much of the primary care premises in the area remains an important driver for
change and is reflected in the addition of new developments proposed in this
SSDP.

Page 11 of 28
Page 53



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

4.8 Other Local Strategic Developments

4.8.1 Regeneration

There are a number of regeneration initiatives that are underway in the
Boroughs of Barking & Dagenham and Havering. It is the express intention of
this LIFT project to ensure that the LIFT development proposals, and the
wider primary care strategy, are integrated with the other social, community,
economic and education projects. For example within Barking and Dagenham
the Jo Richardson scheme, planned for tranche 1.3, may involve combining
health facilities on a school site. The redevelopment of South Rainham, in
Havering, and Barking Town Centre and will also provide important
opportunities for including health in regeneration.

4.8.2 New Housing Developments

There are a number of major housing developments proposed for both
Boroughs over the next 5-10 years. Of particular significance are:

= Thames View/Barking Reach - up to 15,000 new residents

= Barking Town Centre — housing planned as part of redevelopment of the
area

= Romford/Oldchurch Hospital site - when services transfer to Oldchurch
Park new hospital

= Ford Works, Dagenham - possible major new residential development if
Ford reduce activity on their Dagenham site and free up land

= Dover’s Corner in Rainham where developers propose to build 500 units of
new housing

= Harold Wood Hospital site - when services transfer to Oldchurch Park new
hospital

= St. George’s Hospital site — if some services transfer to Harold Wood
hospital site, parts of this site may be designated for housing

4.9 Case for Change Summary

A detailed analysis of the condition of primary care and mental health services
and facilities in Barking & Dagenham PCT, Havering PCT, and NELMHT is
reflected in the 2002 SSDP. In summary, the key factors that determine the
need for a change in the current primary care estate are as follows:

= The condition of the existing primary care estate and its suitability for the
delivery of modern health care services is variable and existing premises
are often poor and inappropriate for modern delivery of primary care

= Current facilities often fail to meet patients’ expectations, with quality and
access below an acceptable standard

= Service development in the past has sometimes been severely hampered
by the limitations of the premises available to deliver care

= Investment in primary care facilities in the past has also tended to be on a
piecemeal basis, not resulting from a strategically identified service need.

Page 12 of 28
Page 54



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

Rarely has it been designed to achieve integrated service delivery
between different health and social care organisations

The fundamental challenge for primary health care is to invest in premises so
that the meet the requirements for modern integrated primary care services
and their effective delivery. Strong progress has been made in Barking and
Havering towards achieving this aim.

5. Progress on Tranche 1 Schemes
Progress is detailed below on the eight primary care premises developments

for which financial close has been reached and contracts have been signed.
The table below provides a summary of construction start and complete dates

and planned opening dates.

Tranche | Project PCT Construction | Construction Planned
Start Complete Open Date
1.1 Thames View | B&D Jan 2004 Jan 2005 Feb 2005
1.1 Broad Street B&D Apr 2004 May 2005 May 2005
(previously
Morland
Road)
1.1 Harold Hill Havering Jul 2004 Sep 2005 Oct 2005
1.2 Church EIm B&D Oct 2004 Oct 2005 Oct 2005
Lane
1.2 Cranham Havering Jan 2005 Nov 2005 Dec 2005
1.2 South Havering Jan 2005 Dec 2005 Jan 2006
Hornchurch
1.2 Marks Gate B&D Mar 2005 Feb 2006 Mar 2006
1.2 Annie B&D May 2005 May 2006 Jun 2006
Prendergast

The following sections detail improvements that will be delivered through LIFT
for the tranche 1 schemes summarised above.

Tranche 1.1 (Financial Close: 4™ December 2003)

5.1 Thames View

= Enables the expansion of two existing practices (increases
capacity from 3 to 6 GPs)
= Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms,
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services

Page 55

Page 13 of 28




BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

that can be delivered in primary care (provides new minor ops
facility)

Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

Allows for some growth in population size to reflect the
significant increase in population forecast for the Thames
Gateway area over the next ten to fifteen years

Allows for a campus approach with the neighbouring newly
opened Sure Start centre (being built on the neighbouring site to
the Sure Start development).

5.2 Broad Street

Allows the full development of an integrated hub of services for
older people including the provision of an over-65 mental health
day hospital alongside services such as podiatry and
endoscopy, allowing the possibility of holistic care for the over
65s

Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms,
minor operations facilities and diagnostics, which will expand the
services that can be delivered in primary care

Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

There is a possibility that a Walk In Centre is included

Hub for the Practitioners with Special Interests (PWSI)

53 Harold Hill

Provides enhanced space and scope for three existing practices
from the old health centre and one new practice to develop and
expand the services they provide (increases space from 6 GPs
in the old health centre to 12 GPs)

Provides space to begin to tackle the large list sizes within the
locality by introducing more practitioners into the health centre
Provides a better range of facilities, including dental and
podiatry treatment rooms, minor operations facilities and
diagnostics facilities, which will expand the services that can be
delivered in primary care (introduces an outpatient suite,
physiotherapy, minor ops room, x-ray and ultrasound rooms in
addition to GP space)

Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

Tranche 1.2 (Financial Close: 19" July 2004)

Page 14 of 28
Page 56



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

54 Cranham

Enables the expansion of an existing practice and provides
capacity for a second practice (increases capacity from 2 to 6
GPs)

Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms,
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services
that can be delivered in primary care

Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

55 South Hornchurch

Enables the expansion of two existing practices, one from the
old clinic and another from nearby sub standard accommodation
(increases capacity from 2 to 4 GPs)

Provides a fully equipped community dental service base,
including provision for an emergency dental service out of hours
Introduces podiatry services to the locality

Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms,
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services
that can be delivered in primary care

5.6  Annie Prendergast

Provides enhanced space and scope for three existing practices
to develop and expand the services they provide (increases
space from 5 GPs to 8 GPs)

Provides space to begin to tackle the large list sizes within the
locality by introducing more practitioners into the health centre
Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services
that can be delivered in primary care

Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

57 Marks Gate

Enables the expansion of two existing practices (increases
capacity from 2 to 5 GPs)

Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms,
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services
that can be delivered in primary care

Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

Page 15 of 28
Page 57



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

5.8 Church Elm Lane

= Allows the introduction of a new practice into a location that is
traditionally ‘under-doctored’ (introduces 4 new GPs)

* Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services
that can be delivered in primary care

= Better enables the co-location of GPs and other primary care
professionals, such as District Nurses and Health Visitors

Tranche 1.3 (Financial Close planned for 2005)
5.9 Jo Richardson Health Centre/Julia Engwell.

= Enables the provision of new GP space for a 3 GP practice

= Provides a better range of facilities, including treatment rooms,
and minor operations facilities, which will expand the services
that can be delivered in primary care

= Provides for the inclusion of X-Ray and other diagnostic facilities

= Provides for a Child Focus Centre, delivering more specialist
children’s health services, from a Borough based specialist
centre

= May allow for the co-location with the local Connexions service,
and a local créche and day care centre for local children. This
allows for the creation of a Children’s Centre in accordance with
government policy for the area

Two options are being investigated for this proposed development.

Option 1: Existing plan for building alongside the Jo Richardson school, built
through LIFTCo.

Option 2: Alternative site , possibly comprising the Julia Engwell Health
Centre site, and a neighbouring Local Authority site, providing combined site
capacity for the scheme content as set out above - but with different design to
suit the site. Julia Engwell services would need a decant in this option, but
this may be deliverable through use of existing spare capacity (some GPs
moving out of local space, some space at new CEL etc).

It is anticipated that all services currently at Julia Engwell Health Centre will
be relocated into the new Jo Richardson Development if option 1 is pursued.
There will be formal consultation with the public and existing occupants at
Julia Engwell if this is the case

The new scheme will comprise extended and enhanced GP and community
services accommodation, and the development of a child focus centre, to act

Page 16 of 28
Page 58



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

as a hub for the provision within Dagenham of children’s services (a further
hub will be developed for Barking in a later tranche of schemes).

This child focus centre will include child friendly reception and waiting areas,
and child friendly consulting space. It will include the reprovision of the
CAMHS service from Woodward Road, and the reprovision of some related
social services for children, to provide a fully integrated service. The site is
already located close to many key educational facilities for the area.

The Community Learning Disability Team will be relocated elsewhere.

The development has been sized as 2,590 square metres, to accommodate 3
GPs in 1 practice, plus car parking.

5.10 Romford Town Centre

The development of the Romford Town Centre hub has been slowed by the
difficulty in securing land. The development of the existing Victoria Hospital
site on Pettits Lane has not been possible given anticipated planning
constraints and a very difficult and expensive decant requirement. An
alternative site within a shopping complex has been investigated but proved to
be impractical in terms of time and cost. Plans are now being developed for
possible alternative locations.

The updated total specification for the Romford Town Centre scheme will be
approximately 5,500 m? and includes facilities for mental health (including
CAMHS) and substance misuse, 1 GP practice of 8 GPs, Podiatry, Dental, X-
Ray, Ultrasound, Phlebotomy, Physiotherapy, Speech and Language
Therapy, Minor Surgery, Endoscopy, Outpatients Suite, District Nursing,
Health Visiting, School Nursing, Contraceptive Services, Voluntary Sector
partners, and a Health Information Shop.

5.11 North Rainham

The initial SSDP identified North Rainham as a priority for development and
highlighted the need to identify land to build a completely new health centre.
Following extensive investigation it became apparent that no suitable sites
were available in North Rainham to provide all the services wanted in that
area. A London Borough of Havering site on Lambs Lane in North Rainham
has now been identified and will be used to build a North Rainham Health
Centre to provide accommodation for the GPs of North Rainham. The health
centre will be approximately 800 m? and will provide space for 6 GPs in 2
practices, housing all North Rainham GPs, all of whom currently practice from
unsuitable semi detached houses.

The Rainham wide community service elements that were to be included in
this scheme will now be included in the South Rainham scheme included in
future tranches.

Page 17 of 28
Page 59



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

5.12 Porters Avenue

The Porters Avenue development is scheduled for tranche 1.3. Discussions
are ongoing with the LBBD regarding additional local authority children’s
services to be provided at this site. The health service element of this
development is now in the region of 2,100 square metres. Other services are
under consideration for inclusion including a private dental practice. Services
currently planned for inclusion are:

Podiatry

Imaging

Community team for long term conditions
Specialist nurses

Physiotherapy

Social Services Mental Health Resource Centre
Children’s respite care

Dentistry

6. Vision and Principles for Development
6.1 Introduction

This SSDP concentrates upon the primary care service strategy for each of
the PCTs, and allied to that, the interlinked issue of the primary care estate. It
also considers the services to be delivered in the community by NELMHT.

6.2 Model of Care

The work done to develop local strategies has already been outlined (Primary
Care Strategic Services Review). This work has led to the development of a
local model of care, which forms the basis of both PCTs plans for improving
the primary care infrastructure and delivering key aspects of the Local
Modernisation agenda and NHS Plan objectives.

The model of care envisages a number of larger, primary care resource
centres located throughout the two PCT areas, highly accessible to all of the
resident populations, supported by improved GP premises providing both core
GMS/PMS services and, in some cases, extended models of primary care.

These resource centres will provide the following:
= a base for a number of local GP practices to come together under one

roof in high quality facilities along with community health services and a
range of other health and social care practitioners

Page 18 of 28
Page 60



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

= gspace to develop and deliver a wide range of extended primary care
services including some services traditionally delivered in a secondary
care setting such as some day case surgery

= diagnostic facilities to enable patients to receive a greater proportion of
their care in a primary care setting (making access easier and reducing
pressure on the acute sector)

= opportunities to reduce the isolation of individual practitioners

= physical and organisational structures that support high quality clinical
governance arrangements and training and professional development

= vehicles for addressing the local problems of recruitment, retention and
the impending retirement of significant numbers of local GPs, and
other primary healthcare professionals

= the space and potential for improving inter-agency working with social
care and the voluntary sector

= facilities to allow the development of new services at the primary and
secondary care interface that will support the local re-engineering of
acute services

In places the PCTs will use a ‘hub and spoke’ model where a larger centre is
connected for operational and managerial purposes to a smaller facility or
facilities. This will be governed by various factors including local configuration
and quality of services and geographical factors.

In addition to the features detailed above, the partner organisations wish to
continue to use the LIFT process and the development of primary care
resource centres to create a more central role for dentists, opticians and
community pharmacists in primary care provision.

6.3 Mental Health

Service models within NELMHT will work towards delivering the standards
contained in the NSFs applicable to Mental Health.

It is crucial that mental health services support primary care to ensure that, as
far as possible, those presenting with mental health problems are treated in
primary care in order to prevent referral to secondary services and potentially
admission to hospital.

6.4 Human Resources

The PCTs recognise that a suitably qualified workforce in the right number, is
vital to their overall success. While human resource strategy is not detailed
with this SSDP both PCTs are committed to staff development and are
involved in initiatives such as Improving Working Lives. Havering PCT has
developed workforce development strategies for primary care, nursing and for
allied health professionals. Workforce strategies are also being developed in
Barking and Dagenham. The new primary care centres will see great
advances in physical access to premises for staff as well as patients.

Page 19 of 28
Page 61



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

The PCTs actively work with staff side on employment issues arising from the
LIFT project. A joint management and trade union sub group of the Strategic
Partnering Board exists where such issues can be raised. There is also staff
side representation in the LIFT Strategic Partnering Board.

7 Approach to LIFT
7.1  Principles

The following principles underpin plans for current and future investment in
LIFT. They respond to the future models of service delivery and care that are
being developed by local partners. The principles address the NHS Plan,
other national targets and respond to patient and client expectations. They
are:

= co-location and co-alignment of relevant staff and services under one
roof, for example, community health staff and social services care
managers, pharmacists, dentists, etc. - a ‘one-stop shop’ approach

= all premises will wherever possible provide a point of access to all
services through a common reception and patient/client administration
system. This will be based on electronic health records. It will give
equity of access to all patients and clients

= where appropriate, a reduction in the number of single handed
premises. This does not necessarily mean a reduction in the number
of single handed GPs, but rather the provision of buildings that will
accommodate a number of GP practices, sharing support services, and
thereby improving the support network available to sole practitioners

= extension of opening hours to widen access to services

= enhanced patient services through ICT developments, for example
directly booked hospital appointments, electronic test results and, over
time, email consultations. An open door will be provided through ICT
to a range of services and information such as health advice ‘off the
net’

= provision of physical capacity to allow a shift of services between
secondary care to a primary care setting

= shared diagnostic and referral protocols between secondary and
primary care, to improve standards of elective care

= gservice design to reflect and meet the particular ethnic, cultural and
language requirements of the population, and physical accessibility (to
comply with the Disability Discrimination Act)

= support for family friendly principles and changes in working practice
such as working from home and hot-desking, linked to changes in
culture, organisational development and a new workforce strategy

= Flexible design to facilitate change and innovation

Those centres that feature specialist services (such as children’s services),
will be located conveniently to serve larger local populations, in a hub and

Page 20 of 28
Page 62



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

spoke model. Within Havering the intention is to develop three main primary
care centres, one in each locality (Harold Wood, Hornchurch, and Romford).

7.2 Service Standards

New facilities will be designed having regard to all relevant legislation and
design guidance. This will include the appropriate Health Building Notes,
Design Guides, design related Health Facilities Notes and Technical
Memoranda published by NHS Estates and any guidance issued by
professional bodies.

7.3 Barking & Dagenham PCT Future Schemes

The schemes currently being developed in Barking & Dagenham PCT for
consideration of inclusion in future tranches of LIFT development beyond
tranche 1.3 include:

7.3.1 Barking Town Centre

The Barking Town Centre area has been identified as an area in need of
regeneration and redevelopment. Plans for this redevelopment are at an
advanced stage. Barking and Dagenham PCT, working closely with the
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham have identified space within the
redevelopment of the area for a substantial primary care health facility. This
will provide a wide range of services to current residents and also cater for the
increase in town centre living expected from new housing included in the
regeneration programme. This scheme will require individual outline and full
business cases. Once the outline business case is approved by the NELSHA
the scheme will formally be included with Stage 1 approval, with other
potential schemes, in tranche 2 of the LIFT programme.

The new Barking Town Centre scheme has been provisionally sized and
costed at about 7,500 m? and includes provision for the following services.

Child Focus Centre

Physiotherapy hub

Health Shop

PCT Headquarters

Child Health Services Headquarters

Specialist Childrens’ services including physiotherapy, speech and
language therapy, audiology, continuing care team and the B&D PCT
part of the St George’s Child Development Centre.

=  Community Dentistry

= Extended Primary Care services

Page 21 of 28
Page 63



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

7.4  Havering PCT Future Tranche Schemes

The schemes proposed by Havering PCT for consideration of inclusion in
future tranches of LIFT development beyond tranche 1.3 include the following.
Once any required business cases are approved by the NELSHA the scheme
will formally be included with Stage 1 approval, with other potential schemes,
in tranche 2 of the LIFT programme.

7.4.1 Hornchurch

Hornchurch will be one of the three main primary care hubs in Havering
(along with Central Romford and Harold Wood). In addition to the extended
primary care services to be provided the development provides the
opportunity to relocate several nearby small GP practices currently working
out of domestic properties, which do not meet modern NHS standards. While
the location of this site is not yet finalised the likely locations are near to
Hornchurch high street or in the grounds of St George’'s Hospital. This
scheme is part of the St George’s outline business case which is in
preparation for submission in Summer 2005.

The new building has been provisionally sized at 4,600 m? and includes
provision for the following services.

6 GPs in three practices

Community Services (District Nursing, Health Visiting, School Nursing)
Diagnostics services such as X-Ray, Ultrasound and Phlebotomy
Outpatient Facilities

Hornchurch Community Mental Health Team (CMHT)

Podiatry

Phlebotomy

Physiotherapy hub

Endoscopy and minor surgery

Child Health services base and Child Development Centre

7.4.2 South Rainham

The South Rainham development brings an expansion of service provision to
the most southerly part of Havering. Rainham will see most of the new
housing being developed in the borough through the Thames Gateway
developments, as is an area of relative deprivation. This ‘mini hub’ will
provide general practice services to patients in South Rainham and extended
primary care services for the whole Rainham area. This will provide the
Rainham area with those services, which were planned in the first SSDP to go
into North Rainham but could not be placed there due to the unavailability of
land of the size needed in that area. Havering PCT and LIFTCo are in
discussion with property developers about including the South Rainham
scheme in plans for 500 units of new housing at Dover’s Corner in Rainham.

Page 22 of 28
Page 64



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

The new building has been sized at 1,465 m? and includes provision for the
following services.

4 GPs in two practices (this is new capacity)

Community Services (District Nursing, Health Visiting, School Nursing)
Diagnostics services such as X-Ray, Ultrasound and Phlebotomy
Outpatient Facilities

Podiatry

Phlebotomy

Physiotherapy

Minor surgery

7.4.3 Collier Row

Collier Row is included in tranche 2 as a potential development, given the
poor state of the existing building and strong interest shown by a large local
practice with need for new premises to expand. The existing Collier Row
Clinic site is very restricted and a new site would need to be identified for this
development. This scheme may require individual outline and full business
cases.

The new building has been sized at 2,380 m? and includes provision for the
following services.

16 GPs in three practices

Community Services (District Nursing, Health Visiting, School Nursing)
Outpatient Facilities

Dentistry

Podiatry

Phlebotomy

Physiotherapy

Minor surgery

7.5 Further Phases of LIFT

Further tranche(s) of new schemes are planned for LIFT in Barking and
Havering. All current primary care premises not currently included as tranche
1 buildings are possibilities for tranche 2 and beyond. The inclusion of any
subsequent developments in LIFT has been assumed.

Some key areas for potential development, which will be subject to the
production of a number of business cases, in addition to those required to
support the schemes outlined above, cannot happen prior to the opening of
the Oldchurch Park hospital development in 2007 and the closure of current
Hospital facilities at Harold Wood Hospital and Oldchurch Hospital at that
time.

Page 23 of 28
Page 65



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

Havering PCT is considering the future of all of its services currently located
at St George’s Hospital and Hornchurch Clinic, including elements of PCT
wide Older People and Rehabilitation inpatient services. In parallel the PCT is
also considering services to be contained in a Primary Care Resource Centre
hub to serve the Upminster locality and located at Harold Wood Hospital. The
future options for these services were evaluated in a Strategic Outline Case
approved in 2003 and will be the subject of an outline business case which is
in preparation.

Barking and Dagenham PCT is similarly considering the future use of the
Barking Hospital site. Barking and Dagenham PCT will take over the running
of the Barking Hospital site when Barking Redbridge and Havering Hospitals
NHS Trust concentrate secondary care services on two sites at the expanded
King George’s Hospital and new Oldchurch Park Hospital.

Barking Hospital will then be redeveloped to provide a hub for primary care
and intermediate care services. NELMHT and BHRT, as joint owners of the
site, are working with the PCT and LBBD to consider the options for the whole
site including the existing mental health provision. An outline business case is
in preparation for this project and currently includes provision for the following
services.

Intermediate Care Beds

Birthing Centre

District Nursing, Health Visiting and School Nursing

Diagnostics services such as X-Ray, Ultrasound and Phlebotomy
Outpatient Facilities

Physiotherapy hub

Sexual Health Service

Dentistry

Podiatry

Endoscopy and Minor Surgery

It is anticipated that two new health centres will be required in Barking Reach
over the next few years as new housing is developed in this part of the
Thames Gateway zone. In addition the development of Five Elms and Oxlow
Lane clinics may be included by Barking and Dagenham PCT in tranche 2 or
3.

NELMHT facilities in Becontree Clinic and at Suttons House, St George’s
Hospital may also be included in future tranches.

8 Financial Analysis and Affordability
This section sets out the financial aspects of the LIFT. These include
indicative capital and revenue consequences for the schemes currently being

considered for future tranches of projects for Barking and Havering LIFT.

8.1 Financial Context

Page 24 of 28
Page 66



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

Barking & Dagenham and Havering PCTs are part of the local health
economy covered by the North East London Health Authority.

Based on current advice, the Government has indicated that 7.5% is the
optimal level of real NHS growth in England over the next few years. With this
unprecedented level of funding above inflation it is the aspiration of the PCT
that some of this extra funding will go towards the improvement of Primary
Care and part of that will be in the form of the LIFT programme for improving
local health facilities.

8.2 Cost of planned new schemes

The table below summarises budget estimates of construction and revenue
costs for the four schemes identified. As with the existing LIFT schemes
construction costs are the responsibility of LIFTCo, while the local health
service will be responsible for lease costs for these buildings. A full financial
affordability analysis for each scheme will be required prior to financial close,
and some will require business cases (as described above).

Scheme Lead Tenant Building Broad Estimated
Size Estimate of addnl
M? Capital Cost | Revenue
MIPS 425 inc VAT Cost
& Eguolgrgent £000
Barking Town | B&D PCT 7,500 22,000 1,920
Centre
Hornchurch Havering 4,600 13,000 930
PCT
South Havering 1,465 5,000 340
Rainham PCT
Collier Row Havering 2,380 8,000 290
PCT
9. Stakeholder Support and Involvement

9.1 Introduction

A Barking and Havering Strategic Partnering Board (SPB) was established to
manage and deliver the process of securing a LIFT partner and to monitor the
development of LIFT locally. This Board draws its membership from across
the entire local health and social care community. Its role includes the
development of this and future Strategic Service Development Plans.

9.2 Stakeholder Support

Page 25 of 28
Page 67



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

The SPB, which has approved this strategy, includes each key stakeholder
organisation, to ensure that the SSDP is locally owned and supported. It is
chaired by a Non Executive Director of Havering PCT.

The vision and plans within this document have been agreed by the Health
Authority, PCTs, North East London Mental Health Trust, Barking Havering
and Redbridge Trust, and the London Boroughs of Havering and Barking &
Dagenham.

While every opportunity is taken to include patients in the LIFT process this
has principally been through project specific groups, which meet regularly for
each scheme.

10. Project Management and Associated Timetable
10.1 Introduction

The SPB has monitored the progress of the PCT LIFT project team in the
production of the Strategic Services Development Plan, as well as setting the
overall strategy and providing leadership across partnership organisations.
The SPB has also actively monitored progress in the tranche 1 developments,
including the reaching of financial close on eight new health centres over the
last year.

10.2 Project Management Arrangements and Timetable

In order to deliver this efficiently and effectively, Barking and Havering has
established robust project management structures to ensure:

the project is delivered with timeliness and efficiency
ownership of the project is as wide as is practicable
all stakeholders are properly consulted and informed
the benefits offered by NHS LIFT are maximised

the opportunity for step change is delivered

Below the Strategic Partnering Board, which will steer and control the overall
objectives for the project, is the following:

= a Project Director is appointed who is the named senior individual
responsible to the Project Board for the day-to-day management of the
project. The Project Director is directly employed by the two PCTs.

= project management support is provided within each PCT to support
the Project Director, and will be the key point of contact, with
responsibility for the day-to-day detailed management of the project
within each PCT. They will provide the interface between the Project
Director and the supply side of the project team.

= an additional assistant project manager post has been agreed to
provide support in delivering equipment procurement for the new health

Page 26 of 28
Page 68



BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

facilities and to support work on decanting into temporary health
premises

= LIFTCo have appointed a Chief Executive with responsibility for
delivery of the new health care facilities

= the LIFTCo Chief Executive is supported in this capacity by a project
management team with staff focused on the development, building and
maintenance of new health facilities in Barking and Havering

10.3 Partnerships for Health
Partnerships for Health have assisted the Barking and Havering LIFT by:

= providing detailed input to the planning and management of the
procurement of the partner and the processes leading to the
establishment of a LIFT company in December 2003

= developing a standard suite of documentation that can be used to
deliver local schemes as efficiently as possible.

Partnerships for Health are a 20% shareholder in the Barking and Havering
LIFT Company.

10.4 Timetable

Tranche one was split into three sub-tranches to facilitate earlier financial
close for those schemes that were ready to go earlier in the process which
allowing a longer time for development of other sites. A timetable with details
of start and completion dates and provisional opening dates for the eight
health centres included in tranche 1.1 and 1.2 was included earlier in this
SSDP.

The table below details estimates on timescales for tranche 1.3 schemes.
Exact timetables for these schemes will be set prior to financial close for these
schemes.

Tranche| Project PCT Construction | Construction Planned
Start Complete Open Date

1.3 Jo B&D 2005/6 2006 2006
Richardson

1.3 Romford Havering TBA TBA TBA
Town Centre

1.3 North Havering 2005/6 2006 2006
Rainham

1.3 Porters B&D 2005/6 Early 2007 2007
Avenue

Page 69

Page 27 of 28




BARKING AND HAVERING LIFT

STRATEGIC SERVICES DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2005

12 Glossary

BHRT Barking, Havering and Redbridge Hospitals NHS
Trust

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

CDAS Community Drug Advisory Service

CHD Coronary Heart Disease

CMHT Community Mental Health Team

DOH Department of Health

FM Facilities Management

GLA Greater London Authority

GMS General Medical Services

GPs General Practitioners

LBBD London Borough of Barking and Dagenham

LBH London Borough of Havering

LDP Local Delivery Plan

LIFT Local Improvement Finance Trust

LRO London Regional Office

NELHA North East London Health Authority

NELMHT North East London Mental Health Trust

NHS National Health Service

NSF National Service Framework

Primary Care

Those health care services provided by health care
professionals in the community

Secondary care

Those health care services usually provided from or
at hospitals

PCT Primary Care Trust

PCTC Primary Care Treatment Centre

PFI Private Finance Initiative

PMS Personal Medical Services

PPP Public Private Partnership

SPA Strategic Partnering Agreement
SPB Strategic Partnering Board

SSDP Strategic Service Development Plan

Page 28 of 28
Page 70




THE EXECUTIVE

24 MAY 2005

AGENDA ITEM 7

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE STRATEGY

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2004/05

| FOR DISCUSSION

To update the Executive on 2004 / 2005 end of year actuals for the following performance

indicators:

O Best Value Performance Indicators (statutory)

U Council Scorecard Performance Indicators

O Local Public Service Agreements (LPSA) targets

Summary

This report:

e Provides background information on the monitoring of the Statutory and Council
Scorecard Performance Indicators detailed in Futures, Barking and Dagenham's

Performance Plan together with our LPSA targets.

e Presents a series of graphs reporting performance on a number of Performance
Indicators highlighted by CMT for your consideration (Note: the graphs are circulated

under separate cover).

Recommendation

The Executive is asked to discuss performance as highlighted by the performance

indicators presented.

Contact:
Laura Nicholls Policy and Review
Officer

Tel: 020 8227 2517

Fax: 020 8227 2806

Minicom: 020 8227 2685

E-mail: laura.nicholls@Ibbd.gov.uk

1. Background

1.1  InJune 2004, the Council published its annual Performance Plan — Futures 2004 /
2005 - setting out how the Authority aims to improve its services over the next 12
months. The document was published on the Council’'s website on 30 June 2004.

1.2  The Statutory Performance Indicators are Natio

nal Indicators which have been

determined by ODPM (Office of the Deputy Prime Minister — the Government
department overseeing Best Value) and the Audit Commission.

1.3 The Council is required by law to collect and pu
process of developing the scorecards, services

blish this information. In the
have identified key indicators for

measuring improvement. This year's plan lists the Council Scorecard Performance
Indicators for 2004 / 2005 (Chapter 2 — Managing the Council). Internal Audit has
again carried out an audit of all the Council Scorecard Indicators to ensure they are

Page 71



1.4

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

robust and collectable. A central system is used to monitor each Performance
Indicator, which is updated by departments on a quarterly and, in some cases,
monthly basis.

The performance indicators that will be presented at the Executive contain CPA PIs,
CPA ‘Killer PIs and our progress on the LPSA targets. From 2005, a number of
performance indicators in the CPA basket now have special rules applied to them.
The performance weighting of these Pls is higher than the rest in the CPA basket
and poor performance of these PlIs will result in a lower service block score. These
Pls have been designated as ‘CPA Killer PIs’ on the graphs.

In addition, the Executive will receive a pack containing end of year actuals for all
other Best Value Statutory Pls and Council Scorecard PIs.

For presentational purposes, each Performance Indicator is being reported in a
graphical format, which allows performance to be shown over time and compared
with other Local Authorities. Pl headings are traffic light colour-coded and "smiley
faces" have been added to clearly express how we are performing. Those
indicators in the CPA basket and those that are considered High Risk are
highlighted with a red tab at the top left hand of the graph.

For the national indicators, neighbouring Borough information is shown as vertical
bars on the graphs. Top 25% National and London target lines have now been
removed from the graphs. This has been replaced with horizontal bands of colour.
These bands show the National top 25% (green), middle 50% (amber) and bottom
25% (red). The graphs now clearly show how far performance is into or away from
the bandings. (Please note it is only possible to compare our performance with the
previous year’s top quartile targets as these are only released in the December of
each year following the outturns for that year). This will not be possible for the
majority of Council Scorecard PIs, as they are unique to Barking and Dagenham.

For Social Services performance information, comparison is not made with top
guartile data. Comparison is made with Performance Assessment Framework
(PAF) performance targets for England.

The notes section underneath the graph enables Chief Officers to be consistent in
the way they report the PI's performance. (See headings below).

Headings

Improvement / Deterioration since last reported
Further action planned at last quarter

Progress of action since last quarter

Further action planned for next quarter

Additional Information

Corporate Impact

Page 72



1.10

1.11

1.12

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

For the majority of Council Scorecard PlIs this is the third year of reporting. Targets
have been set for the next three years for the majority of these and are presented
on the graphs.

The annual deadline for the publication of Futures, Barking and Dagenham’s
Performance Plan is 30 June. It is still a requirement that a summary of
performance information should be published by 31 March. Our summary of
performance information for 2004 / 2005 was published in the March 2005 Citizen
and is available on the Council's website.

The Government have specified 96 Best Value (statutory) Pls for 2004 / 2005
compared to 98 in 2003/04 and 97 specified for 2002/03. 94 have been specified
for 2005 / 2006.

Quarterly Monitoring

Each Performance Indicator contained in the Performance Plan is being monitored
on a quarterly basis where possible. Some indicators can only be calculated on an
annual basis and this is shown on the individual graphs. As the majority of the
Council Scorecard Pls are strategic, they will only be reported annually unless
otherwise stated.

Quarterly monitoring allows the Council to identify problem areas at an early stage
and take remedial action to improve performance. It also identifies areas of good
practice within the Council so that it can be shared throughout the organisation.
The graphs are a useful visual aid to enable Members of the Executive to challenge
Chief Officers on poor performance. The changes to the notes section should
further assist Members in performing this role.

This quarterly process is also used to monitor our Local Public Service Agreement
(LPSA) targets which were agreed with Government in 2003. From April 2003 the
following Council scorecard indicator, CS17b: Percentage of LPSA targets met
on an annual basis is used to monitor its progress.

Comparing Performance

Guidance from the ODPM advises each Authority to compare performance with
other Local Authorities. The monitoring system established allows the comparison
of performance across a number of levels. National indicators provide the greatest
opportunity for comparing performance as each Local Authority is collecting and
reporting identical information.

Neighbouring Boroughs — Research undertaken by the Audit Commission has
identified that people are particularly interested in comparing the performance of
their Local Authority with neighbouring areas. Barking and Dagenham compare
their performance with the neighbouring boroughs of Redbridge, Havering and
Newham.

Top 25% of performing Councils — It is a requirement under Best Value that each
Council must aim to perform within the top 25%. For indicators relating to the
quality of services, comparison should be made with the top 25% of Councils across
the country. For indicators relating to the cost of the service, comparison should be

Page 73



made with the top 25% in London. The ODPM have determined that in most cases,
a low service cost is preferable.

3.4  Local targets — For the majority of Council Scorecard Performance Indicators
comparisons can be made both over time and against the target set. These are
identified on the relevant graphs.

4. Conclusion

4.1  This is the last report on the monitoring of Futures 2004 / 2005 Barking and
Dagenham’s Performance Plan.

Background papers used in the preparation of the report
e Best Value Performance Indicators 2003/2004 (burgundy book)

e Futures 2004 / 2005 — Barking and Dagenham'’s Performance Plan
e Consultation on Best Value Performance Indicators for 2005 / 2006.

Page 74



AGENDA ITEM 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



By virtue of paragraph(s) 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



AGENDA ITEM 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



AGENDA ITEM 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



